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Strategic repoft

The directors present their Strategic Report on the Haynes Group Limited (“the Group™) for the 10 month period ended.
3 April 2020. The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance with
International Reporting Standards (IFRS’s) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRSIC) interpretations as adopted by
the European Union and the Companies Act 2006-applicable to companies reporting under IFRS.

With effect from 8 April 2020, the name of the Company was, changed. from Haynes Publishing Group P.L.C. to
Haynes Publishing Group Limited. On the same day the Company was re-registered from a Public Company to Private .
Company limited by shares.

Acquisition by Infopro Digital (Holdco) Ltd

On 3 April 2020, Infopro Diéital (Holdco) Ltd acquired the entire share capital of the Company, through a Scheme of
Arrangement, which concluded the formal sale process announced-by the Company on 15 November 2019.

Business review
The results for the period are set out on page 13.

The results of the Group show turnover of £31 5m (2019 36.2m), adjusted earnings before exceptlonal items, mterest
tax, depreciation and amortisation ("EBITDA") of £12.7m (2019: £12.8m).

Dunng the period the Group incurred non-recurring adjusting items of £14.1m. The Group also sold its Treasury shares
as part of the sale generating proceeds of £8.6m which is recognised directly in reserves. The adjusting items relate to -
the following: £11.4m related to the successful sale of the Group (net £2.8m if the sale of the Treasury shares are
excluded), £2.3m related to amortisation of mtanglbles and £0.4m related to restructuring in the Group’s Consumer
Division. -

The Group reports adjusted pre-tax profit of £2.5m (2019 £3.6m) and after the inclusion of the above adJustmg items a
pre-tax loss of £11.7m (2019 profit: £1.9m).

The company's net asset position has decreased by|£2 3m to £20.7m as at 3 April 2020, as the profits generated during.
the period were more than offset by the one-off transaction costs incurred.

The net IAS 19 pensions deficit on the Group s two defined benefit retirement schemes as at 3 April 2020 reduced by
£1.0m to £22.8m (2019: £23.8m). -

Key performance indicators .

The Board regularly monitors and measures key performance within the business to ensure the underlying Group
operations are performing in line with expectations. The information, which is largely embedded into the monthly
reporting packs prepared for the Board members, enables the Board to measure the success of the individual operating
entities and the Group as a whole, in achieving its objectives for revenue and profit growth The companys main key
performance indicators (KPls) are the trends in turnover and EBITDA

Turnover
Delivering sustainable revenue growth is a key measure for the business.

Reported turnover for the period was £31.5m (2019: £36.2m). Solutions across the Professional segment continue to
drive organic revenue growth, increasing market share with year-on-year (like-for like) revenue up 4%.

Earnings before exceptional items, interest, tax, depreciation, impairment and amortisation ("EBITDA")

A significant ‘objective for the Board is to drive-profit growth. Adjusted EBITDA measures the operating profit
performance of the Group before the deduction of exceptional items and before the charge for tangible asset depreciation
and intangible asset amortisation. Adjusted ‘EBITDA is therefore an important indicator of underlymg profit and cash
generation. .

EBITDA for the period was £12.7m (2019: £12.8m). The Group’s pro-rated adjusted EBITDA increased by 19% over
the period reflecting the stronger sales from the Group’s professional product ranges in Europe.

Haynes Group Limited
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Strategic report - continued
Principle risks and uncertainties

. ] : . :
The management of the business and the execution of the company's strategy are subject to a number of risks. Risk taking
is inherent for the company in pursuing growth opportunities, whether these are found in new sectors or markets, through
developing new products or through delivering cost savings and restructuring programmes. There is a chance this could lead
to unsuccessful investments or inadequate changes which could give rise to negative results or loss of key staff. Therefore,
the company encourages responsible risk-taking which balances risk and reward within the company's strategy. Risk is
monitored by senior management within the company, with all higher risk projects periodically reviewed by the board.

- The key business risks affectmg the company are set out below

Regulatlon risk — Changes to regulatlons around the provision of technical data or the cost of licensing the data could
necessitate changes to the production processes of the Group or increase competition in the market.

Risk mitigation — The Group actively monitors planned and actual changes to regulations in all territories in order to
minimise disruption to the business. Key senior personnel are appointed to Associations and Bodies that regularly
feedback on the drafting of future regulations in our key territories. Management closely monitor the cost of licensing
the data to ensure it is calculated in line with the spirit of legislation. :

Operatlonal risk — arises from failed internal processes, people, technology or systems The company contmuously
reviews and seeks to improve business systems and processes to reduce the risk that they might fail or are inadequate to
meet the business needs. o e

The business is dependent on its information technology systems to run its day-to-day operations and in the case of its
digital delivery platforms to deliver the technical information to its end users.

Risk mitigation — The recruitment of technically competent staff and the appropriate level of investment in the Group’s
information technology infrastructure. Increasing use of the Cloud, monitoring security risks, up-to-date anti-virus
software, maintaining adequate back-up procedures and regular testing and control reviews of the systems are key
components of mmlmlsmg the risk of system downtime.

Being a data and content business, the Group continually faces the risk of publishing inaccurate information despite the
Haynes brand being built on a reputatlon of publishing technically accurate information in a trusted and easy to
understand format.

Risk mitigation ~ The Group takes the necessary steps to minimise this risk through embedding a process driven
methodology into its editorial systems to capture its téchnical data as well as relying on the skill and expertise of the staff
and the level of quality control applied throughout the process. As a responsible business, the Group has appropriate
global i insurance to cover product indemnity and multlmedla liability.

Market & Competmon risk — Reducing DIY activity on cars & motorcycles in the Group s geographic markets and
increased availability of free online information. . . - :

Risk mitigation ~ Management are focussed on broadening the Group’s revenue generéting base, opening up new
geographic sales’territories and developing new dehvery platforms to deliver the Group’s content through a variety of
multi-media formats.

'Financial risks— The principal fmancjal risks faced by the com_p’any are currency, liquidity and credit risks.

The company maintains foreign currency bank accounts to limit recognised losses on currency exchange rate movements
but also actively seeks to minimise its exposure to significant movements in foreign currency exchange rates by matching,
as far as possible, the costs of the business against the turnover of the business in the same currencies.

The company is exposed to the risk of financial failure of a customer. The selection of a wrong customer could lead to
negative results and cash issues. Where appropriate new customers are credit checked through an independent agency
and any customers identified as having a poor credit rating are required to make payment in advance of the Group
performing their obligations. . :

The Group operates two defined benefit pension schemes, one in the UK and one in the US. The schemes carry an
inherent risk that the funding position deteriorates leading to increased company contributions which could adversely
impact the Group’s ability to invest in the development of new delivery platforms, new product initiatives and to fund
both internal and acquisitive growth. The performance of both the US and UK pension schemes are monitored on a
regular basis by the Company, the Trustees. and the' Scheme’s professional -advisers and the funding to the schemes
reflects the ongoing investment requirements of the Group. In 2015, both the US plan and, UK scheme were closed to-
new entrants and in 2018, the UK scheme closed to future accrual.

Haynes Group Limited
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Strategic report - continued
Ability to attract and retain key talent

An inability to retain key individuals, inadequate succession planning or inability to recruit people with the right
experience and skills could adversely impact the company's results. It could lead to the loss of knowledge, decreased
efficiency or a demotivated workforce with increased costs. To mitigate these issues the company places great value in
the culture, its employees, and their involvement in the business. The company undertakes performance reviews twice a
year ensuring its employees focus on personal development where desired. The Group also runs a number of incentive
schemes linked to personal, division and company results that are appropriately designed to retain key individuals.

Intellectual property risk

Along with its employees, the company's main asset is its intellectual property and the company relies on intellectual
property laws, registered trademarks where appropriate, and third-party non-disclosure agreements to protect its rights.
To the extent that the company's products are protected by intellectual property rights, litigation is sometimes necessary
to protect such rights.

Brexit

Shortly after the vote to leave, management prepared an internal impact assessment. The Group is exposed to fluctuations
in the value of sterling, in particular; i) a proportion of sales are made outside the UK, predominantly in Euro’s and US
dollars; and ii) the contract for the Group’s external production is priced in US Dollars but paid in. In relation to the first
of the exposures, the risk is primarily translational and does not affect the underlying operating efficiency or performance
of the local businesses. In relation to the second of the exposures, the Group has some natural hedging which helps to
offset the impact of the transactional exposure such that the overall impact for the Group is not expected to be material.

The Directors assessment of risk posed by Brexit remains unchanged. The Group generates 62% of its revenue through
its digital products and technical data solutions and through the sale of publishing rights and brand licensing arrangements
where the Group has flexibility over where these services can be provided. The remaining 38% is generated through the
sale of printed products globally, of which 2% relates to sales into Europe from the UK. Our printed product is not
perishable and therefore any delays in the supply chain will only impact on the timing of inventory to and from our
distributor. The Group has relationships with short-run printers both within and outside the UK which management are
confident will allow the Group to manage any Brexit related disruption to supply arrangements in the short-term.

The financial statements were signed shortly after a trade deal was agreed between the UK and Europear{ Union. At the
time of signing the Directors had not assessed the impact of the trade deal in full however they do not believe it would
have a material effect on the Group.

Cov1q-l9

Towards the end of the period, the Covid-19 pandemic was starting to impact the Group at both an operational and
financial level. The Group quickly established dedicated response teams to help oversee a transition from office to home
working in all territories with minimal disruption. Demand in the worst affected regions dropped through April and May
however management are pleased to report that the impact was only temporary, with trading in the quarter ending August
2020 being ahead of expectations. The financial impact from Covid will be reported in the period subsequent to these
statements. The Board and Senior management of the Group would like to thank all of our employees for the way they
have and continue to manage this difficult situation. The safety of our employees.is paramount and management will
closely evaluate governmental guidance in all our territories to ensure business operations continue as normal whilst
providing a safe working environment for all our staff.

On behalf of the Board,
RS Barker

Director

24 February 2021
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) 'Disclosure of information to auditors

‘Directors’ report

The directors present their report and the audited consolldated financial statements for Haynes Group Limited (“the
Company™) for the period ended 3 April 2020. The directors have elected to prepare the numbers for the period to 3 April
2020, this date being within 7 days of the accounting reference date; 9 April 2020. Reference to the previous reporting
period was for the year ending 31 May 2019. These financial statements also represent the consolidated financial
. statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (“the Group™).

Principal activities and Business Strategy

 The Company's principal activities are those of a holding company. Through the activities of its subsidiary undertakings -
the Group is a leading supplier of content, data and innovative workflow solutions for the automotive industry and -
motorists. For the Automotive Aftermarket, our goal is to supply integrated data products and solutions, through
innovation and partnership. For motorists, our goal is to provide inherently trustworthy, practical and useful information
to empower our end-users to understand maintain and repair.

thur‘e developments

The acquisition of the Group represents an opportunity for Infopro Digital to become a leading global information
services provider in the automotive industry by combining its own automotive division with that of the Haynes Group
“and leveraging both companies’ datasets, customer bases and existing international operations. The combination of the
“two Groups will create a compelling product portfolio in the market for thelr own respective partners-and customers
seeking international software, data and insight solutions. : .

. '
Dlrectors

The directors who held office during the period and to the date of this report were as follows:

C Czajka (appointed, 3 April 2020)  E Bell (resigned, 3 April 2020) A Kwarts (resigned, 3 April 2020)
E Dolan (appointed, 3 April 2020) . JHC Haynes (resigned, 3 April 2020) H Wolff (resigned, 3 April 2020)
_JT Bunkum . J Yates-Round (resigned, 3 April 2020) S Daykin (resigned, 3 April 2020)
RS Barker P van der Galién (resigned, 3 April 2020) N Wright (resigned, 3 April 2020)

Results and dividend

The loss for the period, after taxation, amounted to £10.2m (20195 profit £1.4m). During the period, the Company
paid no interim dividend and the directors are not recommending the payment of a final dividend for the period ended
3 April 2020. As a result of the above there were no dividends paid for theAperiod (2019: £1.1m).

Directors’ and officers’ indemnity insurance

The Company purchases and maintains insurance for the directors_and officers of the Company when undertaking
duties in accordance with Sc’s 233 and 234 of the Companies Act 2006.

Polltlcal donations

Durmg the period the Group did not make any political donatlons in the UK or outside of the UK (20]9 £nil).

" The Directors of the Company confirm that, in so far as they are aware, the Company’s auditors have been made
aware of all relevant audit information. In addition, each of the Directors have taken all the reasonable stéps that a
director ought to take to make themselves aware of any relevant information and if there is any such information, to
establish that the Company’s auditors are also aware of that information. : '

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the Company has adequate resources to ‘
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. Accordmgly, they continue to adopt the going concern
basis in preparing the annual report and financial statements.

P

Independent auditors

The auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, have signified their willingness to continue in office.

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701 . ' '
3 April 2020 . 7




Compahies Act 2006 s172 and Stakeholder Engagement

The directors consider, both individually and collectively, that in the decisions taken during the financial period they
have satisfied the requirements of s172(1) of the. Companies Act 2006 in acting in the way they consider, in good
faith, would be most likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members, as a whole, and in
doing so having regard to the stakeholders and matters outlined in s 172(1).

Long term strategy and vision

.The board is responsible for establishing the headline strategies and long-term vision of the Group and ensuring these
are communicated and aligned across the business. In setting the long-term strategies and vision for the business, the
board also had regard for the key stakeholder groups and matters outlined below.

Employees

The Board places considerable value on the participation and involvement of the Group’s employees and with an
" employee base spread over eight different countries, the Group is committed to employment practices which support

equal opportunities and non-discrimination and which comply with relevant local legislation and codes of practice.

As an equal opportunities employer, the Board understands the importance of diversity throughout the business. The

Group encourages the employment of under-represented groups recogmsed in the Equality Act 2010 in_line with
- business requirements.

The Group involves employees by providing them with information which concerns them, consults with them and
considers their views when making decisions which affect their interests and generally discloses matters affecting the
Group’s performance through company briefings. The Company run a staff incentive scheme where awards are
benchmarked against specific business and personal objectives of each staff member.

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the Group’s health and safety matters. Each of the Group’s operating entities
has its own health and safety committee .which meet at regular intervals and any incidents,.and if appropriate,
corrective actions, are reported to the Board. Employee health and wellbeing is taken very seriously and consequently
the company offers a range of benéfits and services to staff to support their mental and physical health. ~

Shareholders

The Company was listed until its sale at the end of the period. As such the Directors considered that clear and timely
communication of information to Shareholders as an important part of their function. Previous announcements would
include a Chairman’s Statement and Strategic Report to provide a summary of the Group’s trading performance and
future outlook. .

Periodically, the Company’s corporate brokers would arraﬁge briefings for Shareholders or their representatives with
the Group’s management following the Group’s interim and final announcements. The Chief Executive would update
the Board with any significant discussions/feedback thh Shareholders at each Board meeting.

Until the sale of the Company, the Chairman was in a good position to ensure that the views of major Shareholders
are communicated to the Board as a whole. The Annual General Meeting was an ideal opportunity to communicate
with both institutional and private investors alike and confirms its compliance with all the provisions of the Corporate
-Governance Code relating to the constructive use of Annual General Meetings.

“ Now as part of the wider Infopro Digital Group, the board has a keen interest in'understanding ultimate shareho]der
objectives and where feasible reflects these when developing its long-term strategic plans.

Other stakeholders

Customers - the company recognises that engagement through listening, understanding and responding to customers
is critical to long-term success. The Directors engage with customers through regular mectmgs cngagement at
tradeshows dedicated account management and customer satisfaction interviews. )

" Suppliers - Engagement with supply chain partners takes many forms across the Group mcludmg, but not limited to,
conferences, tradeshows and regular meetings with'dedicated relationship managers. The company seeks to maintain
and develop strong, open, collaborative and positive relationships with partners across the supply chain. The board

_recognises the significance of cashflow and fair and prompt payment to supply chain partners and sets policies,
procedures and contract terms accordingly. .

Other- major stakeholder groups include Pension Trustees of the UK’s Retirement. Benefit Scheme, company's
insurers, bankers, advisors, auditors and tax authorities in the territories in which the Group operate. With all these -
stakeholder groups, the Directors maintain regular, open and collaborative dialogue which they believe is essential to
fostering strong relationships and ensuring that all parties are kept informed arid listened to. Pension Trustees, insurers

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
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-Companies Act 2006 s172 and Stakeholder Engagement - contmued

and banks are provided with regular company updates and are |nv1ted to meetings at least annually to receive updates
on current performance, forecasts and objectlves

Communities and environment

Haynes recognises the important role busmesses can play by supporting society and regularly makes donations to aid
arange of charities.

Recently, our focus has been on engaging with charitable causes to promote opportunities for young people and
disadvantaged groups to learn important life skills through practical application. We believe that hands-on learning
can help 'young people gain an appreciation for, and improve attitudes towards, education by learning tangible
technical skills which help build self-belief and self-esteem. .

Our primary focus remains on the continued expansion of the MechaniX programme, which is designed to give young
people belief in themselves by providing them with the skillsets necessary to successfully carry out meaningful
practical tasks by repairing and maintaining a car. Linking core learning principles to practical outcomes is central to
the MechaniX ethos, as is the aim of participants gaining an introductory-level vocational qualification that will assist
if they wish to further their education or embark on a career in motor mechanics.

Our key partnership remains with ProspeX, a London based youth charity, which supports young people aged 8-21
whose life charices are affected through factors outside of their control. MechaniX programmes have taken place in
three locations this period, and work on the project has taken place in order to allow for thé provision of consistent
course materials for youth centres across the country should they wish to undertake MechaniX programmes.

Business conduct

- The Haynes Brand has been built over 60 years and the Group is inherently known for providing practical and

trustworthy advice. The strategic plans considered by the board are designed to ensure that the Group maintains high,
standards of business conduct which continue to enhance the brands reputation. :

The approval of changes to strategies and policies considered most significant in maintaining the highest standards of
business conduct are matters reserved for the board. The Board is responsible for maintaining procedures and policies
including but not limited. to anti-bribery and corruption policies, whistleblowing, terms of reference for board
members, modemn slavery statement and finance standards. Health & safety is delegated to individual busmess units
with regular reports made to the Board.

On behalf of the Board

Sparkford

o Near Yeovil

RS Barker ' : Somerset
Director . . : BA22 7])

24 February 2021

Haynes Group Limited :
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Statement of directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparmg the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance w1th

applicable law and regulation.
4

Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements. for each financial year. Under that law the
Directors have prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and company financial statements in accordance with United
Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice (United ngdom Accountmg Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework™, and applicable law).

Under company law the Directors must not approve the ﬁnancial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a
“true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and Parent Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
. Parent Company for that period. In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistentfy;
e make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent; -

o state whether applicable IFRSs as adopted by the European Union have been followed for the Group financial
statements and United Kingdom -Accounting Standards, comprising. FRS 101, have been' followed for the
" Company financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed- and explained in the financial -
statements; and .

e  prepare the financial statements on the going concemn basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Group
and Parent Company will contmue in business.

The Directors are also responsxble for safeguardmg the assets of the Group.and Parent Company and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other lrregularmes

The Directors are responsible for keepmg adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explam the
Group and Parent Company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of
the Group and Parent Company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Compames
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the IAS Regulation!

" The Directors are responsnble for the maintenance and integrity of the Company’s website. Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may dlffer from legislation in other
jurisdictions. :

Directors’ confirmations

The Directors consider that the annual report and ﬁnancnal statements, -taken as a whole, is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders to assess the Group and Company’s position
and performance, business model and strategy.

HayhesGroup Limited
Company No. 00659701 _ ) -
" 3 April 2020 o . _ - - 10



Independent audltors report to the members of Haynes Group lelted

Report on the audit of the ﬁnancnal statements

Opmlon - In our opinion:

-s  Haynes Group Limited’s group ﬁnanCIaI statements and parent company financial statements (the “financial
statements”) give a true and-fair view of the state of the group’s and of the parent company’s affairs as at 3
April 2020 and of the group’s loss and cash flows for the 10 month period (the “period”) then ended;

*  the group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with international accounting
standards in conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006;

e the parent company financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom
Genera]ly Accepted Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accountmg Standards, comprising FRS 101
“Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and applicable law); and

e the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006

We have audited the financial statements included within the Annual report and consolidated financial statements
(the “Annual Report”), which comprise: the consolidated and parent company statements of financial position as at 3
April 2020; the consolidated income statement and statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of cash flows, and the consolidated and parent company statements of changes in equity for the 10 month period then
ended; and the notes to the financial statements, which include a description of the signiﬁcant accounting policies.

Basis for opinion

.We conducted our audit in accordance with Intematlonal Standards on Audmng (UK) (“I1SAs (UK)”) and applicable.
law. Our responsibilities under ISAs (UK) are further described in the Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the -
financial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a. basis for our opinion.

Independence

We remained independent of the group.in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in the UK, which includes the FRC’s Ethical Standard and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements.

Conclusions relatmg to going concern
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which ISAs (UK) require us to report to
you where:.

o the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements is
not appropriate; or

o the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt about the group’s and parent company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis
of accounting for a perlod of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements.are authorised
for issue. :

However, because not all future events or conditions can be predicted, this statement is not a guarantee as to the V
group’s and parent company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

Reporting on other information

The other information comprises all of the information in the Annual Report other than the financial statements and
our auditors’ report thereon. The directors are responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or, except to the
extent otherwise explicitly stated in this report, any form of assurance thereon

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsnblllty is to read the other information and, in

doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our

knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify an apparent material

inconsistency or ‘material misstatement, we are required to perform procedures to conclude whether there is a material

misstatement of the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we

have performed, we corclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
“that fact. We have nothing to report based on these responsibilities. :

With respect to the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report, we also considered whether the disclosures requnred by
the UK Companies Act 2006 have been included.

‘.

" Haynes Group Limited
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Independent auditors’ report to the members of Haynes Group Limited - continued

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Based on the responsibilities described above and our work undertaken in the course of the audit, [SAs (UK) require
us also to report certain opinions and matters as described below.

Strategic Report and Directors’ Report

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit, the information given in the Strategic Report
and Directors’ Report for the period ended 3 April-2020 is consistent with the financial statements and has been
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In light of the knowlédge and understanding of the group and parent company and their environment obtained in the
course of the audit, we did not identify any material misstatements in the Strategic Report and Directors’ Report.

Responsnbllltles for the financial statements and the audit
Responsibilities of the directors for the financial statements

As explained more fully in the Statement of directors’ responsibilities, the-directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements in accordance with the applicable framework and for being satisfied that they give a true
and fair view. The directors are also responsible for such internal control as they determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the group’s and the parent company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going -
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the group or the parent company or to cease
operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditors ' responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditors’ report.

Use of this report

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the parent company’s members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for.no other purpose. We do not, in giving these
opinions, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown
or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in wrmng

Other required reporting - Companies Act 2006 exception reporting

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
* we have not received all the information and explanations we require for.our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by- the parent company, or returns adequate for our audit
have not been received from branches not visited by us; or
e certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

e the parent company financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceplions (o report arising from this responsibility.

A

Colin Bates (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory .Auditors
Bristol .

24 February 2021

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701 . . .
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Consolidated incom¢ statement
" for the period ended 3 April 2020

- Continuing operations

, Note 2 Revenue
Cost of sales
i _ Gross profit

Other income .
Distribution costs (

: " Administrative expenses

Note 4 Operating profit/(loss)

Note 8 Finance income

Note 9  Finance costs

Note 23 Other finance costs — retirement
benefits ’
Profit/(loss) before taxation

Note 10 Taxation '

Profit/(loss) for the p‘eriqd

Note 12 Earnings per 20p share
Earnings per share from
, continuing operations
- Basic
© - Diluted

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020

. 10 month period ended 3 April 2020 Year ended 31 May 2019
‘ Adjusting Adjusting
items 1tems
Adjusted . (note 5) Statutory | Adjusted (note 5) Statutory
£000 £000 £000 £000 . £000 £000
31,534 . - 31,534 36,197 - 36,197
(13,977)  (1,822)  (15,799) | (13,744) - (13,744)
17,557  (1,822) . 15,735 22,453 - 22,453
.45 - 45 54 - 54
(6,802) - (6,802) | (8,261) - (8,261)
(7,794)  (12,327)- (20,121) | (10,047)  (1,760) (11,807)
3,006 (14,149) (11,143) 4,199 °  (1,760) = 2,439
10 - 10 3 - 3 .
(58) - (58) (43) - “3)
(488) - (488) (531) - (531)
12,470 © (14,149)  (11,679) 3,628 - (1,760) 1,868
(1,286) - 2,803 1,517 (749) 299 (450)
1,184 (11,346) (10,162) 2879  (1,461) 1,418
" Pence -~ Pence Pence Pence
7.8  (67.0) 9.0 ° 94
7.2 (62.1) 18.7 9.2
13




Consohdated statement of comprehensive income

for the period ended 3 Aprtl 2020

(Loss)/proﬁi for'the period

Other comprehensive income/(expense)

Items that will not be reclassified to proft or loss in
subsequent periods: ) .
Actuarial gams/(losses) on retlrement beneﬁt
obligation

- UK Scheme

US Scheme

+Deferred tax on retirement benefit obligation

- UK Scheme

- US Scheme )

Deferred tax arising on change in corporation tax rate

Items that will or may be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:. '
Exchange differences on translatxon of forelgn
operations

Total other comprehensive income/(expense)

Total comprehensive expense for the financial
period

' Hayﬁés Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020

Notes *

23
23

23 -

23
23

10 month period

Yea; ended

ended 3 April 2020 31 May 2019
. £000 £000
(10,162) 1,418
460 (4,420)

158 138

(87) " 751
37 31)
452 .

946 (3,562)

8 528

954" (3,034)
(9,208) (1,616)

14



Consolidated statement of financial position

at 3 April 2020

Non-current assets .
Intangible assets

Property, plant and equipment
Deferred tax assets

Current assets
- Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Tax recoverable
Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Total current assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Borrowings

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Borrowings

Retirement benefit obligation
Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

. Called up share capital
Share premium account
Treasury shares .
Retained earnings s

Foreign currency translation reserve

Total equity

Note

14
13
15

16
17

18

13

20

19

15
19
23

25

As ét .
3 April 2020
£000

29,471
3,178
7,767

As at
31 May 2019
£000

- 33,502
1,378
6,301

40,416

2,589
17,890
842
5,730

41,181

2,599
9,296

79 -

4,871

27,051
2,483

16,845
2,135

29,534

18,980 -

69,950

(21,443)
(657)

(22,100)

(3,026)
(1,260)
(22,830)

60,161

(10,257)

(27,116)

(10,257) -

(3,026)

(23,845)

(26,871)

(49,216)

(37,128)

20,734

23,033

3270

6,817

2,388 -

8,259

3,270
638
(2,425)
13,299
8,251

120,734

23,033

The financial statements on pages 13 to 47 were approved by the Board of Directors and aﬁthorised for issue on 24

February 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

RS Barker
Director

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020

15



Consolidated statement of chénges in equity
for the period ended 3 April 2020

Share Share  Treasury Foreign  Retained
capital  Premium shares ~ currency earnings - Total
translation

: reserve

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 . £000
Balance at 1 June 2018 3,270 638 - (2,447) 7,723 16,388 - 25,572
Profit for the period : - ‘ - - ' - 1,418 1,418
Other comprehensive . o ‘
income/(expense). - ) )
Currency translation adjustments ' - - : - 528 . -~ . 528

- Actuarial gains/(losses) on defined

benefit plans (net of tax) - ‘ - T . (3,562) (3,562)

- Total other comprehensive expense - - -, 528 (3,562) (3,034)
Tota! comprehensive . - - 528 (2,144) (1,616)
income/(expense) )
Performance share plan - - - - 189 189
Dividends (note 11) - - ’ - - (1,134) (1,134)
Sale of treasury shares - - 22 - - .22
Balance at 31 May 2019 3,270 638 (2,425) 8251 13,299 23,033
Loss for the period : ' ) - - - - (10,162) (10,162)
Other comprehensive . ’ :
income/(expense):

Currency translation adjustments - - - 8 - 8
Actuarlpl gains on defined beqeﬁt o o ) o " 946 946
plans (net of tax) ' . )

Total other comprehensive income : - - - ‘ 8 - 946 954

Total comprehensive .
income/(expense) B i - 8 (9,216) (9,208)

. Fair value adjustment of - - - ‘ - (1,090) (1,090)
share-based payments : ‘ '

Dividends (note 11) . . - - (605) (605)
Sale of treasury shares - 6,179 2,425 _ - - 8,604
Balance at 3 April 2020 . 3,270 6,817 = - 8,259 2,388 20,734

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020



Consolidated statement of cash flows

for the period ended 3 April 2020

Cash flows from operating activities

. (Loss)/profit after tax

Adjusted for :
Income tax (credit)/expense /

. Interest payable and similar charges

Interest receivable
Retirement benefits finance costs

Operating (loss)/profit

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment
Amortisation of intangible assets

" Adjusting items (note 5)

EBITDA before adjusting items

Performance share plan

IAS 19 pensions service costs net of contributions paid
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment
Operating cash flows before working capital movements

Decrease in inventories

.Decrease in receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in payables’
Movement in provisions

Net cash generated from operations

Tax paid
Net cash generated by operating activities

Investing activities "

Disposal proceeds on property, plant and equipment

. Purchases of property, plant and equipment

Purchases of asset held for sale
Expenditure on product development
Interest received

Net cash used in investing activities

Financing activities

"Dividends paid .

Interest paid . -
Payment of leasing liabilities

Proceeds from sale of treasury shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period/year .
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period/year (note 27)

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701.
3 April 2020 ”

Year endéd

10 month period
ended 3 April 2020 " 31 May 2019
£000 £000
(10,162) 1,418
. (1,517) 450
58 43
(10) 3)
488 531
(11,143) 2,439
780 439
8,869 8,194
- 14,149 1,760
12,655 12,832
' - 189
(900) (906)
2 32
11,757 12,147
16 560
32 99
(1,759) 252
- (340)
10,046 12,718
(398) (258)
9,648 12,460
- 22
@17 (401)
(348) -
(7,163) (8,657) .
10 .3
(7,718) (9,033)
(605) (1,134)
(59) (43)
451) .
- - 22
-(1,115) (1,155)-_ :
815 2,272
4,871 2,533
44 66
5,730 4,871
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 ~ Accounting policies |

Haynes Group Limited is a limited liability company mcorporated and domiciled in Great Bmam and reglstered in
.England and Wales. The registered office is Sparkford, Somerset, BA22 71J. '

With effect from 8 April 2020, the name of the Company was changed from Haynes Publlshmg Group P.L.C. to
Haynes Publishing Group Limited. With effect from 27 May 2020, the name of the Company was changed from
Haynes Publishing Group Limited to Haynes Group Limited. The Consolidated Financial Statements of the
Company for the Period ended 3 April 2020 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”). The accounting policies contained below have been consistently applied to the periods presented, unless
otherwise stated and the disclosures in notes 1 to 30 all relate to the Group’s finanicial statements. The Parent
Company financial statements have been prepared in accordance with The Companies Act 2006 as applicable to
companies using FRS 101 and can be found on pages 48 — 56 and the applicable accounting policies of the Parent
Company are contained in note 31. . .

* Statement of compliance
The Group financial statements have been prepared and approved by the directors in accordance wnth Intematlonal
accounting standards in'conformity with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Basis of preparation

The Group financial statements have been prepared on a going concern basis and on the historical cost basis except

for the treatment of certain financial instruments, as well as being presented in sterling, with all values rounded to
the nearest thousand pounds (£000) except as indicated otherwxse

Subsidiary audit exemptions :

J.H. Haynes & Co. Ltd, OATS Ltd, OATS (Amerlca) Ltd, HaynesPro (UK) Ltd and J.H. Haynes (Overseas) Ltd are
exempt from the requirement to file audited accounts by virtue of Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006. E-
Commerce Management Ltd, HaynesPro Commerce (UK) Ltd, Haynes Garages Ltd, Camway Autographics Ltd,
G.T. Foulis & Co. Ltd, Oxford Illustrated Press Ltd, Patrick Stephens Ltd and Teon Media Ltd are exempt from the
requirement to file audited accounts by virtue of Section 480 of the Companies Act 2006..

R . . . .

Basis of consolidation
The Consolidated Financial Statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company made up to the reporting date. The Company controls an investee if all three of the following
elements are present: power over the investee, exposure to variable returns from the investee, and the ability. of the
investor to use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these elements of control.

The results of subsidiary undertakmgs acquired or disposed of in the period are included ‘in the Consolldated Income
Statement from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. Where
necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to brmg the accounting policies used into
line w1th those used by the Group .

All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation.

New accounting standards and interpretations adopted during the period '

In the current financial period, the Group has applied a number of amendments to IFRS’s issued by the IASB that
are effective for accounting period’s that begin on or after 1 January 2019. With the exception of IFRS 16 outlined
below, the application of these amendments has not had any material impact on the disclosures, net assets:or results
of the Group

- IFRS'16 — Leases

The Group adopted IFRS 16 on 1-June 2019 which requires operating leases to be treated the same as finance leases
with the exceptiori of some short-term leases and leases of low value assets. This results in previously recognised
operating leases being treated as right of use assets and the corresponding finance.lease liabilities being recorded on
the Consolidated Balance Sheet. The right of use asset is initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairmeént losses. The lease liability is initially measured at the present

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020 - ' _ , 18



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 . Accdunting policies (continued)

value of the lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequeritly, the lease liability is adjusted for interest and

lease payments. Under IFRS 16, the classification of cash flows has been amended as the lease payments will be '
split into a principal and interest portion and presented as financing and operating cash flows respectively. The

Group has applied the modlﬁed retrospective transmon method, and consequently, comparative information is not

restated.

Within opening balancés asat | June 2019, the Group has recognised £1,997,000 of continuing right-of-use assets
with the same corresponding continuing IFRS 16 lease liability recognised, representing the obligation to make

‘lease payments. The Group has made no adjustments to reflect prepayments and rent free periods due to the nature

of its leases.

The transition impact on the closing 2019 Consolidated Balance Sheet is shown in the table below:

Impact of IFRS 16 transition on - 31 May 2019 IFRS 16 Impact 1 June 2019
2019 Consolidated Balance Sheet £000 . £000 £000
Property, plant and equipment ‘ 1,378 . 1,997 " 3,375
Current borrowings : - (590) . (590)
Non-current borrowings ‘ ’ .- C(1,407) (1,407)
Other - ) 21,655 - - 21,655
Net assets 23,033 . - 23 033

For each lease, the lease term has been calculated as the non-cancellable period of the lease contract The Group has

elected to use the following practical expedients allowed by the standard: .

- the exclusion of initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset;

- IFRS 16 has only been applied to contracts that were previously classified as operating leases; and

- lease payments for contracts with a duration of 12 months or less and contracts for which the underlying asset is
of a low value have continued to be expensed through the Consolidate Income Statement.

Where the interest rate 1mphc1t in the lease cannot be readily determined, the Group’s incremental borrowmg rate
will be used. The Group’s incremental borrowing rate has been set at 2.25% being the interest rate on the Group’s
primary overdraft facility. 2. 25% was within the range of 10 year govemment bond yields across the territories
where the Group leases rxght of use assets.

For the period to 3 April 2020, the impact on profit before tax from continuing operations (before adjusting items)
compared to the prior year is a reduction of £22,000 due to the front loading of interest costs.

The reconciliation from operating commitments disclosed under IAS 17 at 31 May 2019 to the lease liability
recognised on the Consolidated Balance Sheet at 1 June 2019 is as follows: . - .
) i 1 June 2019

- £000
Operating lease commltment at 31 May 2019 as disclosed in the Group’s 2019 Annual Report 2,506
Discounted using incremental borrowing rate at 1 June 2019 : (294)
Deduction from practical expedient for leases with less than 12 months of lease term at transition (109)
Deduction for changes in assumptions between IAS 17 and IFRS 16 disclosure ’ (106)
Lease liability recognised at 1 June 2019 under IFRS 16 ‘ ) ~ 1,997

New standards and mterpretatlons not yet adopted

- The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and IFRS lnterpretatlons Committee (“IFRSIC”) have issued

further narrow scope amendments with an effective date falling after the date of these financial statements. The
application of these amendments will not have any material impact on the disclosures, net assets or results of the
Group., ' ‘

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020 . 19




Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies (contiﬁued)

Adjusting items

Adjustmg items are items of income and expense which, due to the nature, size and/or infrequency of the events
giving rise to them, deserve separate presentation. These specific items are presented on the face of the Consolidated
Income Statement to provide greater clarity and increased understanding of the impact these items have on the
Group’s financial performance. Subsequently,’it also facilitates greater comparison ofthe Group’s underlying
results with prior penods

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consnderatlon recexved or receivable for goods or services provided in
the normal course of business, net ofdlscounts and sales related taxes. The following specific recognition criteria
also apply -

Revenue from the sale of printed product is recognised when the goods are despatched and the significant risks and .
rewards of ownership are passed to the customer and can be reliably measured.

Revenue from the sale of digital data through subscriptions, software licenses and development projects is measured
based on the cornsideration specified in a contract with a customer and recognised by determining the performance
obligations under contract. Where the Group has granted customers the right to use its Intellectual Property, revenue
is recognised upon delivery of the data. Where the Group has granted customers the right to access its Intellectual
Property, revenue is recognised over the period of the license due to the multiple performance obligations including
* delivery of data, subsequent updates arid ongoing maintenance of the delivery platforms. When licenses are sold on
. the Group’s behalf by third party distributors, revenue is estimated over the period in which these sales occur.

Revenue from the sale of publishing rights and brand licensing arrangements is recégnised once the content has
been delivered and the substantial-obligations of the vendor have been fulfilled.

Research and development costs
All research expenditure is charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred.

Development expenditure is charged to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred
unless it relates to either the development of a new product or an enhancement to an existing product where the
commercial viability of the product can be proven, the costs can be separately identified and measured reliably, the
. development is expected to bring future economic benefit to the Group and the Group has sufficient resources and
intends to complete the development and to use or sell the asset. Any such capitalised development expenditure is
amortised on a straight hne basis so that it is expensed to the Consolidated Income Statement over the expected life
of the product.

Foreign currencies .

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to sterling at the rate rulmg on the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising from the movement in rates between the date of transaction and the date of setﬂement are taken
to the Consolidated Income Statement as they arise.

Assets (including goodwill) and hablhtles of overseas subsidiaries are translated to sterling at the rate ruling on the
balance sheet date. The results of that subsidiary are transtated at an average rate of exchange for the period.

Exchange gains or losses arising on the translation of the opening net assets of an overseas subsidiary, together W1th
exchange differences arising on the use of the average rate of exchange, are taken to reserves.

. The foreign exchange rates used in the financial statements to consolidate the overseas- subsndlanes are as follows
(local currency equivalent to £1): : :
Perwd-end rate Average rate

4 ‘ , 2020 2019 2020 2019
US dollar : o 125 126 o L27 1.30
Euro : 1.13 113, 1.14 1.14

Australian dollar - L 203 . 182 189 1.81

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701 : A .
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

1 - Accounting policies (continued) . . : :

Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment assets are held in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at cost (cost comprlsmg the
acquisition cost of the assets along with any other attributable costs at the date of acquisition).

Depreciation is provided to. write off the cost of property, plant and equipment less any estimated current residual
values, by equal instalments over their estimated useful lives. Residual values are based on commercial and industry

_experience and where appropriate using the services of professional surveyors.

Whilé the estimated useful life of an asset is determined on acquisition, using best estimates, both residual values
and estimated useful lives are monitored on an annual basis. Where the estimated current residual value is in excess
of the net book value of the asset concerned, no depreciation is charged during the period.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

Freehold buildings - - 40 years

Short leasehold property - The period of the lease

Right of use assets - _The period of the lease
. Plant and equipment - 3 years to 20 years

Freehold land is not depreciated.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement.

Intangible assets and goodwill
All business combinations are accounted for by applymg the purchase method. Goodwill arising on consolidation ,
represents the excess of the fair value of consideration over the Group’s interest in the fair value of the identifiable .

* . assets and liabilities of a subsndlary at the date of acquisition and is included in the Consolldated Balance Sheet

under the heading of intangible assets.

" For acquisitions made prior to 1 June 2004, goodwill is recorded on the basis of its deemed cost which represented .

its carrying value at 1 June 2004 under UK GAAP.

The goodwill is allocated to cash generating units and reviewed for impairment at least annually. On disposal of a -
subsidiary, associate or jointly controlled entity, the attributable amount-of goodwill is included in the determination
of the profit and loss on disposal.' Costs relating to the acquisition, other than those costs associated with the issue of
debt or equity securities, are expensed through the Consolidated Income Statement as_incurred.

Where applicable, adjustments are made to bring the accounting pollc1es of an acquired business into alignment °

_ with those of the Group. Any costs associated with reorganising or restructuring the business are charged directly to-

the Consolidated Income Statement. If at the balance sheet date the fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities.can only be established provisionally these values are used. Any adjustments to
these values made within 12 months of the acquisition date are taken as adjustments to goodwill.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on mmal recognition at cost. An mtang1ble resource acquired ina .
business combination is only recognised as an intangible asset if it is separable from the acquired business or arises
from contractual or legal rights, is expected to generate future economic benefits and its fair value can be measured
reliably. An intangible asset with a finite life is amortised on a straight line basis so as to charge its cost which, in
respect of an acquired intangible asset, represents its fair value at the-acquisition date, to the Consolidated Income
Statement over its expected useful life. An intangible asset with an indefinite life is not amortlsed but is tested at’

least annually for impairment and carried at costs less any recognised impairment losses.

Product development is recogmsed separately as an intangible asset. Expenditure is only capltallsed if costs can be
measured reliably, if the product is technically and commercially feasible, if future economic benefits are probable
and if the Group has sufficient resources to complete development and use the asset.

.

The estimated useful lives of assets are as follows:

* Goodwill’ - Indefinite life
Trademarks - Maximum of 25 years
Product development =~ - Maximum of 5 years
Know-how ' - Maximum of 15 years
Customer lists - Maximum of 10 years

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701 .
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Notes to.the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-current assets

All non-current assets are tested for impairment whenever events or circumstances indicate that their carrying value
- might be impaired. In addition, intangible assets and goodwill with an indefinite or mdetermmable life are subject to

at least an annual impairment test. -

_ An impairment loss is recognised to the extent that an asset’s carrying value exceeds its recoverable amount, which
will represent the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. An asset’s value in use
represents the present value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from the asset. Where it is not possible

* to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, an impairment review is undertaken in relation to the cash
generating unit to which the asset belongs. The recoverable amount of goodwill is determined by reference to the
discounted future cash flows of the cash generating unit to which it is allocated.

Impairment losses recognised in previous periods for an asset other than goodwill are reversed if there has been a
change in estimates used to assess the asset’s recoverable amount. The carrying amount of an asset shall not be
increased above the amount that would have been determined had no loss been recognised in prior perlods
Impairment losses recogmsed in relation to goodwill are not reversed.

Impairment losses when recognised are passed through the Consolidated Income Statement.

-Inventories .
Stock and work in progress are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materlals
other direct costs and labour together with an appropriate propomon of overheads.

Provision is'made against slow moving and obsolete stock to ensure the value at whxch stock is held in the
Consolidated Balance Sheet is reflective of anticipated future sales patterns. The period before a provision is made
varies between product categories but in all cases does not exceed 5 years.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the aggregate of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is
based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net proﬁt as reported in the Consolidated Income
Statement as it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never-taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carryirig amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Consolidated Income Statement, except -
when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax-is also dealt with in ~

equity.

Where there is no clear relationship between the pension expense recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement
and the tax deductions received in the period on persion contributions paid, deferred tax movements during the
period are first allocated to items recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement and then the remainder,.if any, is
allocated to items in other comprehensive income.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short term highly liquid
investments with original maturities.of three months or less and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Haynes Group Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

Assets held for sale -
Assets are classified as held for sale if; their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale, rather than
continuing use; they are available for immediate sale; and the sale is highly probable. On initial classification as

- held for sale, assets are re-measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell. No

amortisation or depreciation is charged on assets classified as held for sale.

Provisions
A provision is recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet when a Group enmy has a legal or constructive

.obligation as a result of a past event, that can be estimated reliably and it is probable that an outflow of economic

benefits will be required to settle the obligation. If the effect is material, a provision will be made by discounting the .
expected future cash-flows at a pre-tax rate which reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

Pension and other post retirement benefits

Payments to défined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. For defined
benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in
the period in which they occur. They are recognised outside the Consolidated Income Statement and presented in the
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income.’

Past service costs are recognised immediately.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined
benefit obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.

Treasury shares

Shares in Haynes Group Limited held by the Company are classified as part of shareholders equity as treasury
shares and are recognised at cost. The consideration received for the sale of shares held in treasury is also -
recognised in equity, with any difference between the proceeds from the sale of the shares and their original cost
being taken directly to revenue reserves. No gain or loss is recognised in the Consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income on the purchase, sale or cancellation of the treasury shares.

Share-based payment transactions
The Company grants awards of shares to its employees under the Haynes Publishing Group Long Term Incentive

‘Plan (LTIP). These awards vest after a period of three years dependent upon performance conditions being met.

Details of the grants are given in note 24. The fair value of the award is measured at grant date, using.the Black-
Scholes model. The fair value of the award is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in
equity for the share settled award. The amount recogrised as an expense is adjusted to exclude options that do not
vest as a result of performance conditions not being met.

Contingent to the successful sale was a proposed incentive arrangement for senior management in lieu of the Long
Teérm Incentive Plan (LTIP), where shares were awarded but will not vest in line with original expectations. The
announcement, therefore, triggered a modification to the existing LTIP as well as a charge for the new incentive
arrangement from this date, calculated as a cash-settled share-based payment to the date of a sale (3 April 2020).
The fair value of the award is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in the liability on

the Group’s statement of financial position.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognlsed on the Group s Consolldated Balance Sheet when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets which include trade receivables and
cash and cash equivalents are treated as loans and receivables and carried at amortised cost. Financial liabilities are
carried at amortised cost.

- Trade and other receivables - Trade receivables are recorded at original invoice amount less an allowance for

estimated irrecoverable amounts. A provision for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is
objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the
receivables. The amount of the provision is recognised in the Consolidated Balance Sheet and the cost of

Haynes Group Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the financial statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

irrecoverable trade receivables is recognised in the Consolidated Income Statement immediately'
Customer allowances, which are earned by customers on reaching targeted levels of sales are netted against trade
receivables on the Consolidated Balance Sheet.

Bank borrowings - Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair vaIue and carrled at
amortised cost

Trade and other payables - Trade payables are not interest bearing and are recognised and carried at the original
invoice amount .

Dividends payable
The liability for final dividends is recorded when the dividends are approved by the Company s shareholders. For
interim dividends, the liability is recorded when the dividends are paid.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements requires the Group to make certain estimates and

assumptions that have an impact on the application of the policies and the amounts reported in the Consolidated

" Financial Statements. Estimates and judgemients are evaluated based on historical experiences and expected
outcomes and are believed to be reasonable at the time such estimates and judgements are made, although, actual

experience may vary from these estimates. . :

The estimates and assumptions which have the most significant bearlng on the carrying value of assets or liabilities
are explained below:

i) Impairment of intangible assets

In line with 1AS 36, the Group is required to test the carrying value of goodwill at least annually for impairment. As
part of this review process, the recoverable amount of the asset is determined using value in use calculations which
requires estimates of future cash flows and as such is subject to estimates and assumptlons Further details are
contained in note 14 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

it) Impairment of property, plant and equtpment

Where there is an indication that the carrying value of items of property, plant and equipment may have been
impaired through everits or changes in circumstances during the year, a review will be undertaken of the recoverable
amount of that asset based on value in use calculations which will involve estimates and assumptions to be made by
management. Further details are contained in note 13 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

iii) Pensions and other post retirement benefits

In determining the pension cost and the defined benefit obligation of the Group’s defined benefit pension schemes a
number of assumptions are used. These assumptions include an appropriate discount rate, the levels of salary
escalation, price inflation, mortality rates and an estimate for the impact of Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP)
equalisation. Further details are contained in note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

iv) Inventory provisions :
The Group reviews its finished goods inventory on a regular basis and, where appropriate, makes provision for slow
moving and obsolete stock based on estimates of future sales activity. The estimates of future sales activity will be
based on both historical experience and expected outcomes based on knowledge of the markets in which-the Group
operates. Further details are contained in note 16 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.

v) Origination amortisation

The cost of editorially originating a new title is expensed to the Consolldated Income Statement over a period which
management are confident the title will remain in publication. In all cases, this period is deemed not to exceed 5
years. The assessment of future sales activity is based upon estimates from management using both historical
experlence and expected outcomes based on knowledge of the markets in which the Group operates

vi) Product development costs :

The capitalisation and subsequent amortisation of development costs requires management to make certain
judgements regarding the future commercial viability of the development activity and the businesses ability to
devote the appropriate level of resources to complete the development project and sell or use the asset.

‘Haynes Group Limited
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the fi nanczal statements)

1 Accounting policies (continued)

vii) Deferred tax ,

The Group’s tax charge is based on the profit for the year and tax rates effective as at the balance sheet date. The.
recognition of deferred tax assets is dependent upon an estimation of future taxable profits that will be available. In
the event that actual taxable profits are different, such differences may have an impact on the carrying value of
deferred tax assets in future years. Further details are provided in notes 10 and 15.

2 Revenue : .
Revenue by geographical destination : » 2020 2020 2019 2019
and non-currentassets by geographical - External Non-current ~ External Non-current
location on continuingoperations revenue Assets!!] revenue assets!']
' : . ' £000 £000 £000 £000
United Kingdom ) 9,287 10,942 10,134 7,351
" Rest of Europe . - 12,891 16,863 14,096 22,329
United States of America . 8,136 - 4282 - 10,248 . 4,731
Australasia i 785 562 1,054 469
Rest of World : ) 435 - 665 ' -
Total* . e . 31,534 32,649 36,197 34,880
*Analysed as follows: :
Revenue from sales of digital data through subscriptions, 19.273 120218
software licenses and development projects . .
- Revenue from the sale of publishing rights and brand . 403 Co . 490
licensing arrangements .
Total contracted revenue : - 19,676 20,708
Revenue from sales of printed products ’ 11,858 15,489
Total consolidated revenue 31,534 36,197

{11 The analysxs of non-current assets excludes deferred tax assets.

3 Segment information

. As reported in the Group’s recent Annual Reports, management have been transforming the Haynes Group to
“become a leading global supplier of content, data and innovative workflow solutions for motorists and the

- automotive industry. As part of this strategic refocussing of the Group, the way the business is operated has been
changing and last year management felt it was appropriate to re-align the way the Group reports its segments in line
with [FRS 8 to reflect these changes. The segment reporting is consistent with the changes adopted in the previous
year and summary of the segment reporting basis is included below: '

"The Group has two primary operating segments:
. Professional
. Consumer

The Professional segment has its headquarters in. The Netherlands and has offices in the UK, Germany, ltaly, Spain,
France, Romania and the US, operating under the HaynesPro and OATS brands. HaynesPro provide technical data-
and intelligent workflow solutions for the automotive industry including parts distributors, parts manufacturers,
diagnostic equipment manufacturers, fast fit & auto repair centres and fleet operators. In the UK, HaynesPro is an
official DVLA licence holder providing number plate and vehicle registration look-up services for a range of
organisations in the automotive sector where highly accurate and granular reporting are an essential work tool.
OATS is a leading source of lubricant recommendations for the oil and lubes industry, with partners in over 90
countries including some of the world’s major global petrocheémical companies.

The Consumer segment which has headquarters in Sparkford, Somerset, has offices in the US and Australia and
originates and delivers automotive repair and maintenance information to motorists and motoring enthusiasts in both
a print and digital format. Through Haynes AllAccess, the businesses also supply a full range of online vehicle and
motorcycle manuals to professional mechanics, automotive retailers, libraries and the education sector. The UK
business also publishes a range of practical brand extension titles covering a wide variety of subjects styled on the
iconic Haynes Manual as well as a range of light-hearted factual titles published under the Bluffers branding.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

(forming part of the financial statements)

3 Segment information (continued)
Analysis of operating segments ' Professional ~ Consumer ‘Unallocated -Consoﬁdated ,
: 2020 2020 - 2020 © 2020
_ £000 £000 £000 “£000

Segment revenue ’ .

“Total segment revenue 18,737 13,399 - 32,136
Inter-segment sales [!) (164) (438) - (602)
Total external revenue 18,573 12,961 - " 31,534

" Segment result : ,

Adjusted EBITDA 12,811 4,478 (4,634) 12,655

Segment amortisation & depreciation (6,499) .(2,583) (567) (9,649)

Adjusted operating profit/(loss) " 6,312 1,895 (5,201) 3,006

Intra group licence fee (1,530) . (686) 2,216 . - -

Adjusting items [? (5,428) (1,111) (7,610) (14,149)

Net interest payable (34) (15) - (49)

Other finance costs — retirement benefits - (32) (455) (487)

Consolidated (loss)/profit before tax ~ (680) 51 (11,050) (11,679)

Taxation [ 1,517

_Consolidated loss after tax (10,162)

-Professional Consumér Unallocated Consolidated’
2019 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 _£000 £000

Segment revenue . .

* . Total segment revenue 19,496 17,223 - 36,719
Inter-segment sales [!] (43) 479) - (522).
Total external revenue 19,453 - 16,744 - 36,197

" Segment result
Adjusted EBITDA . 11,997 4,442 (3,607) 12,832
Segment amortisation & depreciation (5,040) (3,322) . (271). (8,633)

" Adjusted operating profit/(loss) 6,957 1,120 3,878) 4,199
Intra group licence fee (1,656) (415) 2,071 ) Co-
Adjusting items 2] " (354) - (1,406) -(1,760)
Net interest payable 7 - (22) (11) 40) -
Other finance costs — retirement benefits - (48) (483) (531) -
Consolidated profit/(loss) before tax 4,940 - 635 (3,707) 1,868
Taxation (] (450)
Consolidated profit after tax 1,418
(1] - Inter-segment sales are charged at the prevailing market rates.

(2] Details of the adjusting items are shown in note 5. :

(3] The credit/(charge) to taxation relates to the consolidated Group. Included within the credit/(charge) to
taxation is a £226,000 credit (2019: £791,000 charge) which relates to the Professional segment and
£231,000 credit (2019: £275,000 charge) which relates to the Consumer segment.
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(formmg part of the financial statemenls)

3 Segment mformatlon (contmued)

Segment assets and liabilities

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Working capital assets

Segment total assets
Unallocated head office assets
Unallocated head office eliminations
Consolldated total assets
Segment Ilabllmes

Segment total liabilities ,
Unallocated head office habllmes

Unallocated head office eliminations
Consolidated total liabilities

Segment assets

Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets

Working capital assets
Segment total assets

Unallocated head office assets

Unallocated head office eliminations - .

Consolidated total assets

Segment liabilities

Segnﬂent liabilities

Unallocated head office liabilities
Unallocated head office eliminations
Consolidated total liabilities

Other segment information Professional .

2020

- £000

Segment additions

to non-current assets

Unallocated additions

to non-current assets

Total additions to

non-current assets

Segment depreciation &

amortisation

Unallocated depreciation &

amortisation

_Total depreciation &

amortisation
.Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020

5,593

8,615

Professional ‘ Consumer Eliminations  Consolidated
2020 2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000 - - £000 .
2,227 917 - 3,144
15,124 6,903 - 22,027
12,194 12,032 (2,322) 21,904
29,545 19,852 (2,322) 47,075
26,589
(3,714)
69,950
10,217 2,714 6,411 119,342
: 30,287
(413)
49,216
2019 - 2019 2019 2019
o £000 £000 £000 £000
850 528 ° - 1,378
17,979 7,541 - 25,520
7,921 11,147 (602) 18,466
26,750 19,216 (602) 45,364 -
23,582
(8,785)
60,161
10,178 8,577 (5,932) 112,823
: : 24,576
(271)
37,128
Consumer Consolidated Professional Consumer Consolidated
- 2020 . 2020 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 -
1,962 7,555 6,336 2,503 8,839
196 219
7,751 9,058
2,583 11,198 5,394 3,322 8,716
771 517
11,969 9,233
27
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4 Operating profit
- Operating profit is arrived at after charging/(crediting) the following: 2020 2019
: ‘ : ‘ ' : ‘ ‘ “£000 £000
Net ,foreigri exchange (gains)/losses ) ' . ) 57 . 63))
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (riote 13) : 780 439 .
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 14) g . . .. 11,189 8,794
Loss on sale of property, plant and eqmpmentl . o . 2 o 32
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense . o 3,203 3,886
Charges relating to leases (note 28) - - o : : 530 - 811
" Staff costs (net of wages capitalized and adjusting items) T 10,299 10,063

Auditors’ remuneration

The total fees payable by the Group to PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP and their associates for work performed during the
period/year in respect of audit, tax compllance and other services to thé Group and its subsidiary companies are shown below’ -

2020 2019
. ] £000 . £000
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit : _ -
of the Company’s annual financial statements 36 50
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors and their associates for other services:
-~ The audit of the Company’s subsidiaries pursuant to legislation 146 - - 125
— Other services pursuant to legislation L 13 12
‘ ’ 195 187
5 Adjusting items
' a 2020 2019
£000 © £000

‘Adjusting items included in cost of sales:
— Accelerated amortisation from revision to Useful Economic Life (UEL) 1,822 -

Adjusting items included in adminisirative expenses: ’
1,160

— Equalisation of Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) benefits . ) D _ .

- Acquired intangible amortisation charge . 498 600 -
— Contingent costs associated with the formal sale process 11,414 ‘-
- Restructurmg costs . - . ' 415 -
Total adjusting items effecting profit ' . 14,149 1,760
Adjustment to tax A (2,803) (299)
Total adjusting charge to income statement -~ - : 11,346 1,461

- Adjusting items are those items which warrant separate disclosure by virtue of their scale and nature to enable a full
understanding of the Group’s financial performance. :

On 15 November 2019, the Board announced it was embarking on a formal sale process to sell the entire issued
share capital of Haynes Publishing Group P.L.C.. Contingent to the successful sale was a proposed incentive
arrangement for senior management in lieu of the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), where shares were awarded but
will not vest in line with original expectations. The announcement, therefore, triggered a modification to the existing
LTIP as well as a charge for the new incentive arrangement from this date, calculated as'a cash-settled share-based .
payment to the date of a sale (3 April 2020). The liability af the period end in relation to the above, was £9.3

. million, of which £8.2 million arose from a charge to the Consolidated Income Statement in the period (net of the
reversal of LTIP charges previously booked to the Income Statement). Furthermore, contingent on a successful sale .
of the Group, exit packages were agreed with four members. of the Board totalling £0.5 million (which are
considered as compensation for loss of office) and the Group incurred transaction costs of £2.7 million relating to -
brokers professional advisors and registrars. '

"The restructuring cost adjustment relates to employee exit costs and assocmted legal fees in connectlon to
management of the Group’s consumer automotive edltonal team.
Haynes Group Limited '
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
(forming part of the ﬁnancia;’ statements)

5 Adj ustlng items (continued)

Amortisation of acquired intangible assets is treated as an-adjusting item to help provide stakeholders with
additional information to assess the trading performance of the Group on a consistent basis. Furtliermore, from 1
January 2020, management reduced the useful economic life of its internally generated professional product
development costs and consumer digital platforms from five years to three years to better reflect current market .
conditions and practice. The additional amortisation as a result of this change has been récognised as an adjusting
item to allow stakeholders to assess performance of the Group on a consistent basis.

6 Staff numbers and costs

" The average monthly number of employees (including directors) during the penod analysed by category, were as
follows:

2020 2019
. : number number
" Production . T 229 202
Selling and distribution . . ' ' ) 55 43 -
Administration o - . 44 60
’ : 328 305
The aggregate payroll costs of these persons were as follows:
2020 - 2019
: . : £000 - £000 -
Wages and salaries . . "13,144 11,380
Employer’s social security costs : 1,089 - . 1,502
Employer’s pension costs - defined benefit scheme (note 23) : 55 ' 1,560
Employer’s pension costs - defined contribution scheme . . - 434 355
Total payroll costs excluding adjusting items : ) 14,722 14,797
Termination benefits included within adjusting items ' 546 -
Share-based payments included within adjusting items (note 24) . 8,180 -
Total staff costs - . A 23,448 14,797
7 Remuneration of directors
2020 : 2019
£000 . £000
Directors’ emoluments . ’ :
Salaries and other emoluments | ) 1,654 1,665
" Cash settled share-based payments contingent to sale of the Group 7,630
Pension contributions 129 ) 339
Total executive emoluments , 9,413 2,004 -
Details of highest péid director .
Salaries and emoluments . ' . 208 235
Cash settled share-based payments contmgent to sale of the Group - 1,279
Pension contributions R 32 ) 169.
S 1,519 404

The Directors’ emoluments and key management ‘personnel are considered the same for the current period and the
previous year.

The highest paid director did not exercise any share options during the previou'svyear. In the current period the
highest paid director benefitted from thé cash settled share-based payment as disclosed in note 5, although the
payment was not received until after the period end. )

" Due to the UK retirement benefit scheme closing to future accrual on 30 November 2018, four of the directors who
served during the period were deferred members of the scheme. The amount of pension entitlement accruing to the
highest paid director 'of the Company as at 3 April 2020 was £60,000 (31 May 2019: £60,000). -
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8 Finance income
2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest receivable on bank deposit§ 10 3
9 Finance costs
' 2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest payable on bank loans and overdrafts. . 58 : 43
10 Taxation
2020 2019
£000 £000 .
(a) Analysis of (credit)/charge in the period
Current tax:
— UK corporation tax on profits of the period ‘ - -
— Foreign tax _ ) (364) _ 450
— Adjustments in respect of prior periods’ 5 28
. ) 359) ) 478
Deferred tax (note 15): .
- = Origination and reversal of temporary differences o (1,450) . (28)
— Adjustments relating to rate change : : 292 -
_Total taxation in the Consolidated Income Statement 1,517) 450

The UK effective tax rate for the financial ﬁeriod ended 3 April 2020 was 19%. In March 2020, the UK government
announced the headline rate of tax will remain at 19% from 1 April 2020 rather than reducing to the previously
enacted rate of 17%.

‘ (b) Reconciliation of effective tax rate :
The tax assessed for the, period differs from the UK standard rate of corporation tax for the period of 19.0%

. (2019: 19.0%). The differences are explained below:

2020 2019
£000 £000
(Loss)/profit before tax ' (11,679) - . 1,868
Taxation calculated at the standard rate of corporation tax
in the UK of 19.0% (2019: 19.0%) (2,219) 355
Affected by: ‘ : : : ‘
Variance in overseas tax rates (116) 116
Income/(expenses) not chargeable/deductible for tax ' 398 47
Adjustments relating to rate changes : 292
Adjustments relating to prior years : ' 128 (68)
Total tax (credit)/charge for the period/year
reported in the Consolidated Income Statement : (1,517) . 450
Effective tax rate . 13.0% 24.1%

The effective rate of tax is lower than the standard rate of UK corporation tax due to the mix of profits taxed at
higher rates than in the UK and non-recurring UK losses taxed at the lower UK rate. There is an unrecognised
deferred tax asset for temporary timing differences associated with the Group’s UK entities. Had the asset: been
recogmsed it would have reduced the tax charge by £1,081,000 (2019: £968,000).

Haynes Group Limited
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11 DlVldendS
Dwrdends paid and proposed

" Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period: . .

Final dividend for the Year ended 31 May 2019 of 4. Op per share (2018: 4.0p per share)

Interim dividend for the Period ended 3 Aprll 2020 of £nil (2019: 3.5p per share)

Proposed final dividend for the Perlod ended 3 Apn] 2020 of £nil
(2019: 4. Op per share)

2020 2019
£000 £000
605 605
: 529
605 1,134
- 605

As at 31 May 2019 the Company held 1,229,054 ordinary shares in treasury which represents 16.7% of the ordin‘ary'
share capital and 7.5% of the Company’s'total share capital. The Parent Company is not able to vote on the treasury
shares and the treasury shares carry no right to receive any dividend or other distribution of assets other than in

relation to an issue of bonus shares.

12 Earnings per share

Basic eamings per share is based on the profit for the period attributable to the owners of the Parent Company and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the period excluding shares held to satisfy the
Group’s LTIP scheme and shares purchased by the Company and held in treasury.

Diluted earnings per share have been calculated by taking into account the weighted number of shares that would be
issued if rights held under the LTIP scheme were exercised. Shares purchased by the Company and held in treasury

have been excluded from the calculation.

As at 3 April 2020 there were no-outstanding options on the Company’s ‘Ordinary’ shares (31 May 2019: 304,667).

There are no outstanding options on the Company’s ‘A Ordinary’ shares.

»Infon'na'tion regarding the LTIP scheme can be found in note 24.
N

'Adjusted“] Stetutqry Adjusted“] Statutory
2020 2020 2019 2019 -
£000 £000 £000 £000
Earnings:
' Profit/(loss) after tax attrlbutable to equlty holders :
of the Company - continuing operations i 1,184 (10,162) 2,879 1,418
Number of shares:
Weighted average number of shares for basic ‘
earnings per share ™ (note 25) AS175,575 15175575 15,119,577 15,119,577
s‘:rl‘s‘ﬁz‘i weighted average for diluted camings 16,351,540 16,351,540 15424244 15,424,244
Basic earnings per‘sh'are (pence) - 7.8 (67.0) 19.0 9.4
Diluted earnings per share (pence) ' 7.2 (62.1) 18.7 9.2.

(11 SeeNote S— Adjusting items.

[21. At 3 April 2020 the Company held no Ordinary Shares in treasury (2019: 1,229 054) due to the shares bemg sold
as part of the sale of the Group. In the prior period, on 5 September 2018, the Company sold 10,946 Ordinary Shares i
held in treasury which have been weighted accordmgly in the above calculation.
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13 Property, plant and equipment

. Short
Freehold  leasehold ) '
land and landand ° Right of Plant and
, ‘ buildings buildings .use assets . equipment - Total
Group - o £000 | £000 £000 £000 £000
Cost ) . . ’
At 1June 2018 . 4 536 155 - . 9,029 9,720
‘Additons - .. ‘ 49 24 - - 328 401
Disposals ' o . - . 2.827)  (2,827)
Transfers o - 45 g - (222) 177)
Exchénge rate movements - e ®6) 7 .- . 122 123
- At 31 May 2019 . 579 231 ' - 6,430 7,240
IFRS 16 transition adjustment ' . - 1,997 . - 1,997
Additions : . - 371 217 - 588
Transfers .- : - -2 2
Disposals : A - - - ) © -
Exchange rate movements ) 2 - 7 . -
At 3 April 2020 . 570 233 2,368 6,647 "~ 9,818
Accumulated Depreciation ) ) _ . »
At 1 June 2018 S8 L 148 - 7,969 8,195
Charge for the year g 7 4 - 428 S 439
Disposals ‘ < - - T- (2,773) (2,773).
. Transfers - ’ . 40 - (4 102) -
Exchange rate movements ' 1) : 6 T 98 " 103
At31May2019 ' . 84 198" - 5580 5,862
Charge for.the period - : : C 14 2 473 291 " 780
Transfers » . - - E e 2 2
Disposals : _ - : - B )
. Exchange rate movements =~ n 2 - : 2 3
At 3 April 2020 : 97 202 473 5,868 6,640
" Net book value : . : .
At 3 April 2020 : 473 - 31 1,895 779 3,178
At 31 May 2019 ) 495 .| 33 . - © 850 1,378
At 1 June 2018 . : © 458 7 - 1,060 1,525

There were no assets financed through finance leases or hire purchase arrangements during the current period or prior
year. : ’

The Directors are not aware of any events or changes in circumstances during the period which would have a
significant impact on the carrying value of the Group’s property, plant and equipment as at the balance sheet date.

Assets held for sale

- During the period ended 3 April 2020 the Group acquired the freehold land and buildings of the Old Creamery,-
Sparkford for £300,000 and recognised £48,000 transaction costs, increasing the net book value of assets held for sale
to £2,483,000. On 17 December 2019, the Group exchanged contracts on the whole Sparkford site, including the Old
Creamery for a sale price of £2,500,000. Completion is due to take place on or before 17 June 2021:

Haynes Group Limited
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4 Intangible assets ..

At 31 May 2018

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
. and impairment”

Net book value

Year ended 31 May 2019
Opening net book value
Additions

Transfers at cost ~
Exchange rate movementson cost
Amortisation charge

for the period

Transfers depreciation

Exchange rate movements
on amortisation

Closihg netbook value

‘At 31 May 2019
‘Cost .
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment. -

" Netbook value

Period ended 3 April 2020

Opening net book value
-Additions

Exchange rate movementson cost

Amortisation charge
forthe period

Exchange ratemovements
on amortisation

Closingnetbook value

At 3 April 2020

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Net book value

Acduked )
Acquired  trademarks Acquired A
goodwill anddomain Acquired Acquired customer Product

names know how copyright lists development Total

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 - £000

3,374 - 2,003 6,272 3,082 1,265 62,586 78,582

. (665) (214) (3,082) (84)  (41,293) (45,338)

3,374 1,338 6,058 - 10181 21,293 _ 33,244

)

3,374 1,338 6,058 - 1,181 - 21,293 33,244

- - - - - 8,657 - 8,657

- - - - - 177 177

- 42 }7 164 - 1,095 - 1,318

- 54) (419) - (127) (8,194) (8,794)

; - ; ; . (102)  (102)

: (35) (1) (164) ] (798) . (998)

3,374 1,291 5,655 - 1,054 22,128 33,502

3,374 2,045 6,289 - 3,246 1,265 73,037 89,256

: (754) (634) (3,246)  (211)  (50,909) (55,754)
3,374 1,291 5,655 - 1,054 22,128 33,502

3,374 1,291 5,655 - 1,054 22,128 33,502

- - - - - 7,163 7,163

- 12 5 44 - 296 - 357

. @4s5) . (348) - (105)  (10,691) (11,189)

- (10) 3) (44) . (305) (362)

3,374 1,248 5,309 - 949 18,591 © 29,471

3,374 2,057 6,294 3,290 1,265 -80,496 96,776

; (809) (985) (3,290) (316)  (61,905) (67,305)

3,374 1,248 5,309 - 949 .

18,591 29,471
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14 Intangible assets (continued)

lmpalrment tests for cash- generatmg units (CGU's) containing goodwill or assets with indefinite or
-indeterminate useful lives .

The Group tests goodW|Il and intangible assets with indefinite or indeterminate useful ]ives for impairment annually,
or more frequent]y if there are indications that their carrying values might be impaired. As at the balance sheet date,
impairment tests have been undertaken on the HaynesPro Holding BV and the OATS Ltd CGU's, where goodwill is
‘held The reviews have been based on value inuse calculanons using the latest available financial mformatlon

In order to assess whether 1mpa1rment has occurred the cash flows of the CGU's have been pro;ected over a5 year
period, based on annual financial budgets and three year plans which have been reviewed by the Board and include a
. terminal value. The key assumptions used in these reviews are as follows : :

Pre-tax ‘5-year* Long-term
discountrate  growth rate growth rate

Unit: : ) . . : L '
HaynesPro Holding BV ' V 11% 5% ’ " 2%
OATS Ltd . ' ' : 11% 5% 2%

*The expected growth rates over the five-year period have been based on three-year plans for the CGU's which have been
reviewed by the Board and on the disclosed growth percentages for years four and five.

Management have performed a sensitivity analysis on the above two CGU's and are satisfied that there are no -
. reasonably possible changes to the key assumptions that would cause the recoverable amount of the CGU to fall below
its carrying value as at 3 April 2020..

The‘carry'mg amounts.of goodwill have been allocated to the CGU's as follows:

-2020° 2019
© £000 . 1£000
~ Unit: . .
HaynesPro Holding BV 2,977 2,977
"OATSLid : . 397 397
B 3,374 3,374

The amortisation charge included in the Consolidated Income Statement for the period has been allocated és'folloyvs:

2020 - 2019

~ £000 .. _£000

Cost of sales . : S v . ] 10,691 .. . 8,194
Administration costs - adjusting items ) 498 A 600
: ' S 11,189 . 8,794

Haynes Group Limited
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15 - Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Property . Employee  Short-term  Intangible. Total
. Plantand- ~  benefits _ temporary assets '
Equipment ' differences’ .

X £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Asset/(liabilities) at 1 June 2018 21 3,252 1,167 1(1,980) 2,460
Transfer to Consolidated Income Statement 21 ' 134 (370) 285 28

" Transfer to equity - 720 - - 720.
Exchange rate movements s 4) 15 70 (14) 67
(Liabilities)/asset at 31 May 2019 @ 4,121 867 (1,709) 3,275
Transfer to Consolidated Income Statement 6) (75) 1,313 (74) 1,158
Transfer to equity. - ’ - 328 - - 328
Exchange rate movements : 1 4 (24) (1) (20)
(Liabilities)/asset at 3 April 2020 ' 9) 4,378 2,156 (1,784) 4,741
Analysed as: ] 2020 2020 2020 . 2019 2019 2019

i : Assets - Liabilities Total Assets  Liabilities Total
. £000 £000 £000 £000 £000- £000
Property plantand equipment 16 (25) 9) 37 41y 4)
Employee benefits 4378 . - 4378 - 4,121 - 4,121
Short-term temporary differences - 2,581 (425) . 2,156 1,180 (313) 867
Intangible assets 792 (2,576) (1,784) 963 (2,672) (1,709)
’ 7,767 (3,026) 4,741 6,301 . (3,026) 3,275

16 Inventories
' 2020 2019
£000 £000
Raw materials - . 3
Work in progress - 15
Finished goods 2,589 2,581
’ 2,589 2,599

- The carrying value of inventory represents the cost of inventories less appropriate provisions. During the year there
was a net charge of £nil (2019: £210,000) to the Consolidated Income Statement in relation to inventory provisions.
The movement in the inventory provisions is included within cost of sales in the Consolidated Income Statement.

17 Trade and other receivables

Amounts falling due within one year:
Trade receivables
Less: Provision for impairment

- Less: Customer allowances

Other debtors, prepayments and accrued income

2020 2019
£000 £000
7,609. 8,279
(625) (479)
(456) (488)
6,528 7,312
11,362 1,984
17,890 9,296

Apart from prepayments of £0.3 million (2019: £0.3 million) all of the above relate to financial instruments classified

as loans and receivables.

Haynes Group Limited
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17 Trade and other receivables (continued).
S O o 2020 2019
Analysis of trade receivables: ' ? ~ £000 £000
Not past due » . : 5,039 5,‘876
Past due but not impaired = . : o : v 1,945 1,924
Impaired. ’ _ ' 625 479
7,609 8,279

The categorisation of Past due but not impaired’ relates to customers for whom there is no history of default and

management are confident the overdue balance will be recovered in full.

" The categorisation of ‘Impaired’ relates to both not due and overdue balances where the customer has ceased trading

or management are doubtful of recovery and a provisibn’ ‘has been made to cover the doubtful balance.

The ageing of the *Past due but not impaired’ and the ‘Impaired’ categories are shown in the table below:

Past due but, : Past due but
not impaired Impaired not impaired Impaired
2020 2020 - 2019 2019
£000 . £000 . - £000 £000
Not past due ' - 8 - 37
. Less than 30 days past due : _ 222 : 11 1,152 70
30 to 90 days pastdue A " 1,358 . 50 - 637 53
Greater than 90 days past due . 365 ) 556 135 319
1,945 625 1,924 479
The movement in the Group’s brovisior_\ for impairment of trade receivables was as fol]ows:
:2020 2019
£000 £000
Balance at 1 June - - A ' : . 479 299
Amounts charged to the Consolidated Income Statement’ : ' ) 145 253
- Amounts written-off as uncollectable - A o - an -
Exchange rate movement : 1 4
- Balance at the end of the period/year ' ) ’ 625 479

The trade and other recelvables shown above were held in the followmg currencies at the balance sheet date:

2020 2019
- £000 . £000
*US dollars ‘ ‘ 2,559 2,232
Sterling o - ‘ 4 ' 11,336 2,747
Euro L ' 3,719 4,070
Australian dollars ' - 276 247
' : ' ‘ 17,890 9,296
The fair values of trade and other recelvables are the same as the book values as the credit risk has been
addressed as part of the impairment provisioning and, due to the short term nature of the amounts receivable,
they are not subject to other ongoing fluctuations in market rates.
Haynes Group Limited
- Company No. 00659701
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

(

Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement (note 27)

2020 2019
- £000 £000
5,730 . 4,871

The cash and cash equivalents shown above were held in the following currencies as at the balance sheet date:

AN

US dollars

Sterling

Euro .

Australian dollars
_ Other currencies

2020 2019
£000 £000
2,414 1,927
(883) 259

. 4,047 . 2,479
53 108

99 98
5,730 4,871

Deposits are placed for periods varying between call and one month and attract floating rates of interest based upon

the bank’s cost of funds for the relevant currencies.

19 Borrowings

Lease Liabilities — maturity analysis
Less than one year ‘
One to five years
More than five years
Total undiscounted lease liability
Interest cost associated with future periods
. Lease liabilities included in statement of financial position
Current
Non-current : ’

The effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

- ) . Country /"
Currency . . Rate
Bank overdrafts UK - sterling Bank of bEngIand base rate

2020 12019
- £000 £000

506 -
1,465 -
102 -

2,073 -
(156) -

1,917 . -

657 -

1,260 . -

2020 2019
2.19% 2.21%

In the UK, Barclays Bank PLC holds a debenture against the UK trading companies including a first legal charge
over the UK freehold property in order to secure the £5.0 million (2019: £5.0 million) overdraft facility, together
with guarantees from the UK trading companies. In the Netherlands, HaynesPro Holding BV has a €0.4 million
(2019: €0.4 million) overdraft facility which is unsecured and attracts interest based on the bank’s prevailing base
rate. As at 3 April 2020, the HaynesPro Holding BV facility was unutilised. In the US, Haynes North America Inc
has a $1.0 million (2019: $1.0 million) revolving credit facility with Union Bank which is due for renewal in

January 2021. As at 3 April 2020, the Haynes North America lncl:'fac‘ility was unutilised.

-~
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20 . Trade and other payables

2020 2019

£000 £000

. Trade payables ‘ ’ 2,133 2,169
Other taxes and social security costs L - 832 602
"Other creditors, accruals and deferred income : s . 18,308 7,314
-Corporation tdx . . . ' . . 170 172
4 21,443 - 10,257

" The fair values of trade and other payables are the same as the book values due to the.short-term nature of the
amounts payable and are not subject to other ongoing fluctuations in market rates.

Apart from deferred income of £2.0 million (2019: £1.9 million) all other creditors and accruals relate to financial
instruments carried at amortised cost. .

The increase in other credltors accruals and deferred income relate to Contmgent costs associated wnth the forma
sale process as disclosed in the adjusting items, note S. .

The amounts of trade and other payables shown above were held in the following currencies at t}he balance sheet date:

2020 2019

£000: £000
- Falling due within one year: . :

US dollars . : : . 3,726 2,000
Sterling ‘ : - 11,353 4,586
Euro ‘ ' ' C : - 5,815. 3,038
" . Australian dollars . R ) S . 549 633
’ 21,443 10,257

21 Provisions '

: Restructuring costs

o . 2020 - 2019
' £000  £000
AtllJune . i D : - - 332
Charge to the Consolidated Income Statement . ' - -
. Utilised in the year ) : : : - (332)

" At the end of the period/year : . o : - .

Restructurlng costs

~ As part of the global operational, cost and structure review announced in September 2015 the Group expected to
incur liabilities of £4.4 million which primarily related to workforce reductions, asset write-downs following the

restructurmg and/ or closure of business operations in the US, Australia and Europe and a sales retumns reserve.

In relation to the provnslon shown above the total balance was held in US dollars in the prior year

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
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‘22 Fmanclal rlsk and treasury policy . '

The Group’s principal financial instruments during the period comprised bank loans and overdrafts, cash and short-:
term deposits as well as other various items arising from its operations such as trade receivables and trade payables.

The main purpose of these instruments is to finance the Group’s working capital requirements as well as funding its _

capital expenditure programmes. From time to time, the Group may enter into derivative transactions such as
interest rate swaps or forward exchange contracts, the main purpose of such transactions is to manage the interest
rate and currency risks arising from the. Group’s operations and sources of finance. There were no such transactlons
entered into during the current period or preceding financial years.

Foreign currency risk '

The Group has investments in subsidiary operations outside of the UK and also buys and sells goods and services in
currencies other than in the functional currencies of its subsidiary operations. In light of the above, the Group’s non
sterling revenues, profits, assets, liabilities and cash flows can be affected by movements in exchange rates. The
‘Group is able to take advantage of certain natural hedge flows within the business operations which helps to .
minimise the impact of the fluctuations in exchange but where appropriate will use forward rates to minimise the
risk. There were no forward exchange contracts entered into during the current period or preceding financial years.
". It is Group policy not to engage in any speculative trading in financial instruments.

Sensitivity analysis
The most significant foreign currency risk to the Group is in relation to the euro and the US dollar. Management
estimate that if all other variables remained constant the impact on pre-tax profits/(losses) of a 5% increase in the

value of the euro and US dollar against sterling would have been to reduce profits by £0.1 million and £0.05 million

respectively, with a decrease of 5% having an equal and opposite effect. The impact on net assets of a 5% increase:
in the value of the euro and US dollar against sterling would be £0.6 million and £0.4 million respectively, with a
decrease of 5% having an equal and opposite effect. These estimates have been based on an assessment of
translating the euro and US dollar profits into sterling using the average exchange rates for the period of €1.14 and
$1.27 and closing rates of €1.13 and $1.25. Apart from balances held in the functional currency of the various
Group trading entities, there were no other significant balances held by the trading companies in other currencies

~ which would give rise to a-significant foreign exchange exposure at the end of the financial period.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is prlmanly attributable to its trade receivables, which are spread over a range of countries
and customers, a factor which helps to dilute the concentration of risk. The risk associated with such trading is
mitigated through credit control management procedures including the use of credit worthiness checks, the
application of credit limits and the sale of goods subject to retention of title clauses. The UK business outsources its
distribution which includes customer invoicing, cash collection and credit control. The external distributor invoices
the customers of the UK business as its agent but the UK business retains the full credit risk associated with the
sales. In light of this arrangement the UK business has a secondary risk in relation to the cash collected from its
customers which has yet to be remitted to the UK business by the external distributor. A-provision is made against -
such balances where there is an identifiable loss or event, which based on prior experience provides management
with a'significant doubt over the recovery of the balance. Due to the long established relationships with the majority
of the Group’s'customers and the good standing of the UK distributor which is part of a large multinational ‘
publishing group, there is not deemed to be a credit quality issue in relation to the trade receivables balance. The
amount of the total exposure is shown in note 17.

" In addition to the above, the UK business has an exposure in relation to contractual advanced royalty payments to -
authors. However, due to the large number of authors there is-no significant concentration of risk. The asset balance
in relation to the author advances is held within other debtors and prepayments (refer to note 17) and amounted to
£0.2 million (2019: £0.1 million) net of allowances for doubtful recovery.

The credit risk on liquid funds is limited as the funds are held at banks with hlgh credlt ratings assigned by
" international credit rating agencies.
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22 Fmanclalnsk and treasury pohcy (continued)
Liquidity risk ' :

“The principal aim of the Group’s liquidity management is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and
flexibility through the use of bank overdrafts, bank loans and asset leasing. As at 3 April 2020, the Group had'a £5.0
million UK overdraft facility (31 May 2019: £5.0 million) which has no fixed renewal date and is due for-review in
December 2020, a €0.4 mllllon overdraft facility in Europe (31 May 2019: €0.4 million) which has no fixed renewal
date and is due for review in December 2019, and a $1.0 million revolvmg loan facility in the US (31 May 2019:
$1.0 million) which has $1.0 million undrawn as at 3 April 2020 and is due for renewal in January 2021.

Interest rate risk :

From time to time, the Group companies have overdraft and loan facilities which are subject to variable rates of
interest based on the respective bank’s base rate. As at 3 April 2020, there were no bank overdrafts outstanding (31
May 2019: £nil). Money market deposits are placed for periods varying between call and one month and attract
variable rates of interest based upon the banks cost of funds for the relevant currencies.

Sensitivity analysis

As all of the Group’s borrowings are subject to variable interest rates, the Group has an exposure to a change in the
market rates of i interest. Management have not undertaken a sensitivity analysis on the impact of movement in the )
bank base rate as they deem it would have an immaterial effect on Group results due to a combmanon of the low
lével of borrowmg at the year end and the low current base rates in the UK and US.

Fair value of fnanclal assets and liabilities -

- There are no material differences between the carrying values and the falr values of the financial assets and
liabilities as recorded in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. Details of the amounts of finaricial assets and liabilities
held in foreign currencies can be found in notes 17, 18, 19, 20 and 21 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

.Capltal management

The primary aim of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going

. concern, to support its-businesses and to maximise shareholder value. The Group monitors its capital structure and '
makes adjustments as and when it is deemed necessary and appropriate to do so using such methods as. adjustmg the
dividend payment to shareholders or the issuing of new shares.

Interest cover . . L o : 2020 2019

_ Operating profit before adjusting items (£000) - o 3,00_6 4,199

- Net finance costs (£000) ) T 49 : 40
Interest cover.(ratio) . . 61 105 -

Interest cover is calculated by taking the operating profit before adjusting items from the Consolidated
Income Statement divided by net finance costs (defined as finance costs less finance income), where finance
income is greater than the finance costs, net finance costs is shown as £nil.

Net gearing ratio ' o .. 2020 - r2019 .

Net‘debt — excluding lease commitments (£000) ) . . - -
Total equity (£000) . ‘ 120,734 ¢ 23,033

Net gearing ratio (%) ' - ’ : - Co-

The net gearing ratio comprises net debt divided by total equity (net debt being defined as cashand cash
- equivalents net of bank loans - see notes 18 and 19).
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.23 Retirement benefit obllgatlon

The Group operates a number of different retirement programmes in the countries within which it operates The
principal pension programmes are a contributory defined benefit scheme in the UK (the UK Schemie) and a non-
contributory defined benefit plan in the US (the US Plan). On 30 June 2015 both the UK Scheme and the US Plan
-were closed to new entrants. On 30 November 2018, the UK scheme closed to future accrual and all active members
transferred to a new Group defined contribution plan.

The assets of all schemes are held mdependently of the Group and its subsidiaries. The total pension costs, relating
to the retirement benefit obligation, for the Group as shown in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at the period end and
as charged through the Consolidated Income Statement in the period are-analysed below: _

-

A ) 2020 - : 2019
Amounts recognised in the Income statement ! £000 £000
Amounts included in net operating costs: o '
— Current service costs (defined benefit scheme) o . (55) (350)
— Past service costs - . . -
— Past service costs — GMP equalisatibn ’ - (1,160)
— Gain on curtailment . - ) (50)
) : (55) (1,560)
— Scheme administration expenses ‘ : (184) o (293)
-(239) (1,853)
- Amounts included in other finance costs: ) - )
= Interest income on pension scheme assets- 733 1,034
_— Interest charge on pension scheme liabilities R (1,221) (1,565)
' (488) . - (531
Amount recognised in the Income statement - : (727) (2,384)
. 2020 : 2019
Amounts recognised in the Statement of financial position £000 -£000
Fair value of scheme assets . . 31,073 34,079
Present value of defined benefit obligation (53,903) . (57,924)
Net deficit recognised in the Statement of financial position o (22,830) ’ - (23,845)
Assumptions used to determine the defined benefit obligation 2020 ' 2019
E : ’ : % per annum . % per annum
. o , UK UK
Discount rate ' : ‘ 2.20 o . 245
Salary escalation ’ : o 2.05 2.50
Rate of inflation ) A 2.60 3.25
Increases to pensions in deferment ~1.80 12.25
Pension increases on benefits up to 12 July 2011 2.60 . 3.10
Pension increases on benefits after 12 July 2011~ 1.95 2.15
. : Us . us |
Discount rate ) ' . . 2.66 N S 311
" . Salary escalation ' - - ’ . 2.00 2.00
“Price inflation . : ’ , 2.00 © 200

Pension increases . , 2.00 ! 2.00
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23 Retirement benefit obhgatlon (contmued)

The post retirement mortality assumptlons for the UK Scheme for 2020 and 2019 are based on the S3NA year of.
birth tables with allowance for future improvements in mortality in line with CMI 2018 (2019: CMI 2018)
projections with a long term rate of i lmprovement of 1% per annum. The life expectancies underlying the valuation

are as follows:
UK’
Current ége

65
45

2020 . 2019
Life expectancy at age 65 - Life expectancy at age 65
Male Female Male Female
22.0 244 219 . 243
23.0 25.5 229 254.

The post retirement mortallty assumptions for the US Scheme are based on the "94 GAR post retlrement" standard
tables and the life expectancnes underlying the valuation are as follows:

us -

Current age
65
45

2020

2019
Life expectancy at age 65 Life expectancy at age 65
Male Female = Male Female
20.0 20.0 20:0 20.0
- 20.0 20.0 20.0 20.0

Sensitivity analysis of the principal assumptions used to measure the scheme's liabilities -

Assumption

Change in assumption

Approximate impact on
scheme’s liabilities

Discount rate
Rate of salary increase
Inflation -

Lif_e expectancy

Increase by 0.25%
Decrease by 0.25%
Increase by 0.25%
Decrease by 0.25%
Increase by 0.25%
Decrease by 0.25%
Increase by 1 year
Decrease by 1 year

" Decrease of £2.3m
Increase of £2.4m

" Increase of £0.2m
Decrease of £0.2m
Incréase of £1.8m
Decrease of £1.7m
Increase of £1.9m
Decrease of £1.9m’

The above sensitivity analysis provides an approximate view of the potential effect on the assumptibns (before
deferred tax) assuming all other assumptions remain unchanged. The methodology adopted for the sensitivity
analysns is consistent with that used to prepare the reported schemes liabilities.

Scheme assets and expected rate of returns

‘The assets and liabilities in the plans and the cxpectcd rates of return on investments as at 3 April 2020 were as follows:

Group investment linked policy

- — Equities
— Other bonds
—=Cash
— Property
— Target refurn fund

Secured pensions in payment
Assets at fair value .

Bonds (Assets at fair vélue)

Haynes Group Litnited
Company No. 00659701
3 April 2020

2020 2019
“UK - UK

Value B Value

£000. . £000

5,638 6,375

6,647 6,581

633 687

4220 - 4,219

' 8,127 " 8,674
25,265 26,536

: 1,192 1,233

26,457

27,769

us ~Us
* Value Value
£000 £000

4,616

: 6,310
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23 Retirement benefit obligation (continued) ‘

Reconciliation of funded status UK us Total
2020 2020 2020
£000 £000 £000

Present value of defined benefit obligation  (48,096) (5,807) (53,903)

UK Us Total
2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000

(50,368) (7,556) (57,924)

Assets at fair value _ 26,457 4,616 31,073 27,769 6,310 34,079
Net liability recognised in the :
Consolidated Balance Sheet (21,639) (1,191)  (22,830) (22,599) (1,246)  (23,845)
Amount recognised through the UK ~  US Total UK us Total
- Consolidated Statement of . 2020 2020 2020 2019 2019 2019
-Comprehensive Income . £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Actuarial gain/(loss) during the period/year 460 . 158 . 618 (4,420) 138 (4,282)
Deferred tax on actuarial (loss)/gain &7 (37 (124) 751 3D 720
Deferred tax arising on change in corporate 452 . 452 ) ) )
tax rate
825 121 946 (3,669) 107 (3,562)
Actual return on assets UK us Total- UK - US Total
2020 2020 2020 . 2019 2019 2019
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Interest income on plan assets . 571 - 162 733 776 258 1,034
Actuarial (loss)/gain on plan assets (1,775) 93) (1,868) (430) (141) (571)
(1,204) 69 (1,135) 346 117 463

The cumulative actuarial.loss recognised in other comprehensive income since 31 May 2003 is £17.9m (2019:
£18.5m). The directors’ are unable to determine how much of the pensnon plan deficits are attrlbutable to actuarial

gains and losses on an IFRS basis prior to 31 May 2003.

Reconciliation of present value Reconciliation of Fair value of
of defined obligation " scheme assets
UK us Total UK us Total
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 June 2018 . (44,426) (8,388) (52,814) 27,029 7,073 34,102
Current service cost (164) (186) (350) - - -
Gain on curtailment (50) - (50) - - -
Past service cost — GMP equalisation (1,160) - (1,160) - - -
Net interest (expense)/income (1,259) (306) (1,565) 776 258 1,034
Employee contributions _ (61) - 61) 61 - 61
Employer contributions . - - - 1,075 231 1,306
Actuarial gains/(losses) (3,990) 279 (3,711) (430) (141) (571)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes - (409) (409) - 343 © 343
Benefits paid 742 1,454 2,196 (742) (1,454) (2,196)
* Balance at 31 May 2019 . (50,368) - (7,556) (57,924) 27,769 6,310 34,079
Current service cost - (55) - (5%) - - - -
Net interest (expense)/income (1,026) (195) (1,221) 571 162 733
Employer contributions - - - 955 - 955
Actuarial gains/(losses) 2,235 251 2,486 (1,775) (93) (1,868)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes " - (101 - (101 - 86 86
Benefits paid 1,063 1,849 2,912 (1,063) (1,849) (2,912)
Balance at 3 April 2020 (48,096) (5,807)  (53,903) 26,457 4,616 31,073 -
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23 Retirement benefit obligation (continued)
Reconciliation of change in funded - 2020 .2019
status . UK Us Total UK us Total
‘ - £000 £000 - £000 £000 £000 £000
Balance at 1 June 22,599 © 1,246 23,845 - 17,397 1,315 18,712
Total pension expense ' 455 88 543 1,857 234 - 2,091
Employer contributions ’ (955) : - (955) (1,075) (231) (1,306)
Foreign currency exchange rate changes . - - 15 15 - 66 66
Actuarial gains/(losses) (460) (158) (618) 4,420 (138) 4,282
Balance at the end of the period/year 21,639 1,191. 22,830 - 22,599 1,246 23,845
History of experience adjustments 2020 2019 2018 - 2017 2016
’ £000 . . £000 - £000- £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (53,903) (57,924) (52,814) (57,941) (47,287)
Fair value of scheme assets : ’ 31,073 34,079 34,102 34,163 31,432
Net deficit - (22,830) (23,845) (18,712)  ° (23,778) (15,855)
Experience adjustments on: . - o
Scheme liabilities gain/(loss) - ' 2,486 - @371 - 4,824 . (9,736) . - (477)
Scheme assets (loss)/gain ‘ (1,868) . (871) - 436 1,795 967)
Expected contributions in the forthcoming year’ Financial period beginning 4 April 2020
- - . . UK . UsS Total
. . ‘£000 ~ £000. £000
Company contributions . ) 1,169 - - 1, 169

In March 2012, the Company put in place a guarantee with the UK Scheme to cover an amount equal to the lowest
non-negative amount which, when added to the assets of the Scheme, would result in the Scheme being at least 105
percent funded on the date on which any liability under the guarantee arises, calculated on the basis set out in

. section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004, were a valuation to be conducted at that date. In September 2015 the _
guarantee was increased to 110 percent.

24 Share based payments

The Group operated a Long-Term Incentive Plan (LTIP) scheme, a share-based incentive programme. The LTIP
permitted an annual grant of shares at nil cost and the awards were made to the executive directors and senior
employees. The vesting period was three years and was subject to continued employment as well as two
performance conditions; an EPS performance measure and a return on average capital employed. Once vested the
“-.options remain exercisable for a period 7 years. None had vested by the period end. .

Changes during the period:

* = During the period 155,000 (2019: 161,000) share options were granted or were antlcxpated to be awarded at a fair

) value of £2.24 (2019: £2.25) each. .

- Participants are not entitled to receive dividends or voting rlghts until awards have vested

- . All participants who had received shares under the LTIP waived their entitlements to shares granted in both the
current and previous periods in lieu of a new incentive arrangemént where shares awarded vested on 3 April
2020 as they were contingent on the sale of the Group.

- The announcement about the sale of the Group on 15 November 2019, triggered a modlﬁcatlon to the existing
LTIP as well as a charge for the new incentive arrangement from this date, calculated as a cash-settled share-
based payment to-the date of a sale (3 April 2020). ’ -

- The shares.awarded under the new incentive arrangement totalled 1,229,054 and vested at £7.00 per share on 3
April 2020. The Group recognised this liability (£8,603,000) on its balance sheet at 3 April 2020 along with the
social security liability the payment would attract (£713,000) givirig a total payment due of £9,316,000.

- The accounting for the modification to the ex1stmg LTIP and new incentive arrangement is ‘outlined in the table
on the following page: -
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24 Share based payments (continued)

Income
Statement Equity  Liability

£°000 £000 £°000

LTIP liability at 1 June 2019 ' : ' ' T 46 (46)
Revision of grant date of shares already awarded to 3 April 2020 L. 428 (367) (61)
Change fair value shaf price of shares already awarded to £4.25 - 1,457 (1,457)
Charge for existing awards since modification over new vesting period 565 - (565)
Charge relating to.existing LTIP participants for new incentive arrangement '

‘(excess over amount currently recognised for exiéting LTIP shares) 4,646 ' B (4,646)
Charge relating to non-LTIP participants for new incentive arrangement 2,541 - (2,541
Amounts recognised in financial statements at 3 April 2020 B 8,180 . 1,136 (9,316)

The equity settled share-based bayment expense included in the Consolidated Income Statement in the previous period
was £222,000.

Details of the share options 6utstanding during the period are as follows:

"Number  Number of

' of shares shares vested Number of

Performance Number of awarded and exercised shares lapsed or ~ Number of
period start Fair value Normal shares at  during the duringthe  waived during shares at
date per share vesting date 1 June 2019- period period the period 3 April 2020
1 June 20171 £1.925 31 May 2020 146,667 - - (146,667). -
1 June 2018131 £2.250 31 May 2021 . 158,000 - - . (158,000) -
1 June 201981 £2.240 31 May 2022 - 155,000 , - (155,000) -

304,667 155,000 .- . (459,667) -

(1) The shares with a performance start date of 1 June 20 1-7 were granted on 30 November 2017.
(2 The shares with a performance start date of 1 June 2018 were granted on 26 July 2018.

B The shares with a performance start date of 1 June 2019 were granted on 19 July 2019.

25 Share capital and reserves

- 2020 2019 2020 2019
' ’ No. ’ No. . £000 . £000

Allotted, called up and fully paid: . - o )
‘A’ Ordinary shares of 20p o 9,000,000 9,000,000 . 1,800 1,800
Ordinary shares of 20p ° ) - 7,351,540 7,351,540 1,470 1,470
' 16,351,540 16,351,540 3,270 3,270

The 31 March 1982 share price for capital gains tax purposes is £1. 25 and after adjusting for the 1989 (1 for 1) and
1993 (1 for 2) capitalisation issue this becomes £0.42. On the final day of trading the share price closed at £6.85 (31
May 2019: £1.97), with a high of £7.00 (2019: £2.48) and a low of £1.97 (2019: £1.56) for the financial period.

Both the ‘A” ordinary shares and the ordinary shares carry equal voting rights of one vote per share where a matter

-is decided other than on a show of hands. Both classes of share rank ‘pari passu’ (including any distribution by way

of dividend and on a return of capital), save that a transfer of ‘A’ ordinary shares will not be permitted by the
directors other than to a member of the holder’s immediate family or to family settlements. The holders of ‘A’
ordinary shares may convert such shares into ordinary shares at the rate of one ordinary share for each ‘A’ ordmaly
share, subject to the further provisions of the Articles of Association and the Companies Acts.

Share premium _ : /

The share premium reserve represents the difference between the issue price and the nominal value of shares issued.
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25 Share capital and reserves (continued)
Treasury shares

As at 3 April 2020, the Company had sold all 1ts Treasury Shares as part ofthe sale of the Group. At 31 May 2019,
the Company held 1,229,054 ordinary shares in treasury which represented 16.7% (2018: 16.9%) of the ordinary
share capital and 7.5% of.the Company’s total share capital. The Company was not able to vote on the treasury
shares and the treasury shares carried no right to receive any dividend or other distribution of assets other than in

relation to an issue of bonus shares. -

Retained earnings
The retained earnings reserve represents the cumulative net gains and losses recognised in the Consolidated Income

Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensnve lncome as well as an adjustment to equity in respect
of the share performance plan.

Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the
financial statements of overseas operations. :

26 Related party transactions.

Identity of related parties )
The Group has a related party relationship with its subsrdlarles and with its dlrectors A list of all the Group s
subsidiaries is shown in note 36..

Transactions with related parties

During the period, the Directors had declarable mterests in contracts with the Company and its subsndlary undertakings
as shown’ below

(1) In the prior period £200 was paid to Haynes Developments Limited, of which JHC Haynes is a director, for rent
and service charges relating to Fulton Mews in London. No balance was outstanding at the previous'year end. '

(2) During the period, the Company engaged the services of New Century Media Limited to undertake financial PR
on behalf of the Company. Mr E Bell is a non-executive director of New Century Media Limited. During the period, -
the Company paid £75,044 (2019: £78,584) to New Century Media Limited for financial PR services. As at 3 April

2020, the balance outstanding to New Century Media Limited was £9,010 (2019: £7,800).

(3) During the period Haynes North America Inc. paid $11,760 to Daniel Wolff, son of H Wolff, in respect of software
development work. '

Except as stated above, no directors were matenally interested in contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiary
undertakmgs .

27 Analysis of the changes in'cash and cash equivalents
’ . Exchange .
1June 2019 Cash flow  movements 3 April 2020
_ ~ £000 £000 - £000 £000
Cash at bank and in hand . 4,871 815 4 5,730
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28 Leases

The Group has elected not to recognise a lease liability for short term leases (leases with an expectedvterm of 12

months or less) or for leases of low value assets. Payments made under such leases are expensed on a straight line

b351s

Amounts recogmsed in the Consolidated lncome Statement

Leases under lFRSl6

Interest on lease liabilities
Expenses relating to short-term Ieases and leases of low value assets
Deprecuatlon of right of use assets '

Operating leases under 1AS 17
Lease expense

Amounts recognised in statement of cash flows:

Total cash outflow for leases

29 Capital commitments

At 3 April 2020 and 31 May 2019, the Group had no capital commitments.

30 Immediate and ultimate parent company and controlling party

The immediate parent company is Infopro Digital (Holdco) Ltd, a company incorporated in Great Britain and
registered in England.

The ultimate parent company and controllmg party is Infopro Digital Group B.V_, a company incorporated and
registered in the Netherlands .
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Company statement of financial position

at 3 April 2020
] ‘As at -As at
Note 3 April 2020 31 May'2019 -

: £000 £000

Non-current assets : ’
Intangible assets 34 ) 615 954
Property, plant and equipment .35 ’ 6 2
Investments in subsidiaries ) 36 9,391 9,486
- Deferred tax assets 41 1,693 629
) : i 11,705 . ©11,071

Current assets . :
Trade and other receivables 37 11,516 5,036

Cash and cash equivalents - 626
: . - 11,516 5,662

Assets held for sale 34 2,217 1,869
Total current assets i ‘ ‘ 13,733 - 7,531
Total assets o ‘ 25,438 18,602
Current liabilities i

" Trade and other payables ) 38 (7,498) (1,299)
Borrowings : o B (1,222) . .
Total current liabilities. (8,720) (1,299)
Non-current liabilities .
Deferred tax liabilities : - . (156)
Retirement benefit obligation 40 (2,575) (2,689)
Total non-current'lia_biljtie’s (2,575) . (2,845)
Total liabilities .. . (11,295) .(4,144)
Net assets ) 14,143 . 14,458
Capital and reserves : . .
Called up share capital ' 42 3,270 ' 3,270
Share premium account ’ : » 6,817 638
‘Treasury shares ) _ . - (2,425)
Retained eamnings : 4,254 13,030
Foreign currency translation reserve (198) ) . (55)
Total equity S ~ 14,143 14,458

~ As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the Income Statement of the Company is not presented as
- part of these financial statements. The loss dealt with in the Parent Company financial statements was £7.2 million
(2019: £0.9 million profit) which includes dividends received from subsidiaries of £0.8 million (2019: £3.5 million). -

The financial statements on pages 48 to 56 were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 24
February 2021 and were signed on its behalf by:

RS Barker
Director
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Company statement of changes in equity
for the period ended 3 April 2020

Share Share  Treasury Foreign  Retained

capital  Premium shares currency  earnings Total
“ translation )
reserve
£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Balance at 1 June 2018 3,270 638 (2,447) (11 ‘ 13,490 14,940 .

Profit for the period . - - - - 906 906
" Other comprehensive expense: - I

Currency translation adjustments T o - - 44) - (44)

Actuarial losses on defined. benefit ' . : 7

plans (net of tax) » . E - - ) (42}) - @y

Total other comprehensive expense : - - T . (44) (421) -~ (465)
" Total comprehensive income - - - 48 485 441

Performance share plan - - T oo 189 189

Dividends (note 33) - - - Co- - (1,134) (1,134)

Sale of treasury shares . - - 22 - - 22

Balance at 31 May 2019 3,270 638 (2,425) - (55) E 13,030 14,458

Loss for the period ‘ - - - - (7,168) - (7,168)

Other comprehensive, ' '

income/(expense): ' . .

Currency translation adjustments - - - - (143) - (143) "

Actuarial gains on defined benefit - .

plans (net of tax) - ) . ) 87 87

Total other comprehensive expense - - - (143) .87 - (56)

Total comprehensive expense . - - B (143) . (7,081) (7,224)

Fair value adjustment of

‘share-based payments ) T - o (1,090) (1,090)

Dividends (note 33) ' . - - - (605) (605)
Sale of treasury shares : - . 6,179 2,425 - - 8,604

Balance at 3 April 2020 3,270 - 6,817 - - (198) 4,254 14,143
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Notes to the Parent Company finaricial statements (continued)

31 - Principal accounting policies : . .

Haynes Group Limited is a limited company incorporated and domiciled in the United Kingdom. The pr1nc1pal
act|v1ty of the Parent Company is that of a holding company.

" Basis of accounting
The financial statements of the Parent Company, Haynes Group Limited, have been prepared on a gomg concern
basis, under the historical cost convention, in accordance with the provisions of Flnanclal Reporting Standard (FRS)
101 ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework’ and the Companies Act 2006.

_As the Parent Company meets the definition of a quallfymg entity under FRS 101, the Parent Company has taken
advantage of the following disclosure exemptions: .

e To prepare a Cash Flow Statement and related notes. ]

"o To provide comparative penod reconciliations. for share capltal and tanglble assets
e To provide disclosures in relation to the Parent Company's capital management.

¢ To'disclose the effect of new accounting standards not yet adopted.

s To provide related party disclosures in connection with wholly owned subsidiaries.
e To provide disclosures in respect of compensation to key employees.

" Unless stated separately, the following significant accounting policies have been applied consnstently in the financial
statements for the financial periods ending 3 April 2020 and 31 May 2019. The same policies were applied to the
‘opening Balance Sheet as at 1 June 2014 in line with the transitional provisions of FRS 101.

Research and development
All research expenditure is charged to the Income Statement in the perlod in whlch it is incurred.

Development expenditure is charged to the Income Statement in the period in which it is incurred unless it relates to
either the development of a new product or an enhancement to an existing product. Such development expenditure is
capitalised and amortised in line with product development treatment explained above.

Foreign currencies .

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to sterling at the rate ruling on the date of the transaction. Exchange
differences arising from the movement in rates between the date of transactlon and the date of settlement are taken to
~ the Income Statement as they arise. : :

At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are denominated in forelgn currencies are re-
translated at the rates prevailing on thebalance sheet date.

Property, plant and equipment .

Property, plant and equipment assets are held in the Balance Sheet at cost (cost comprising the acqulsmon cost of the

assets plus any othe( attributable costs at the time of acquisition). Depreciation is provided to write-off the cost of

property, plant and eqﬁipment less any estimated current residual values, by equal instalments over their economic

useful lives. Residual values are based on commercial and mdustry experience and where appropriate using the
" services of professnonal surveyors.

" Where the estlmated useful life of an asset is determmed on acquisition, using best estimates, both residual values
and estimated useful lives are monitored on an annual basis. Where the estimated current residual value is in excess
of the net book value of the asset concerned, no depreciation is charged during the period.

The estimated useful lives of the assets are as follows: Plant and equipment - 3 years to 10 years

The gain or loss on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determmed as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the Income Statement.

Intangible assets

Product development is recognised separately as an mtanglble asset. Expendlture is only capitalised if costs can be
measured reliably, if the product is technically and commercially feasible, if future economic benefits are probable
and if the Group has sufficient resources to complete development and use the asset. Product development costs are-
expensed to the Income Statement on a straight-line basis for a maximum period of no more than 5 years.
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Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

31 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Investments i
Investments in subsidiaries are held at hlstorlcal cost less any provision for impairment.

Taxation

The tax expense represents the aggregate of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. The tax currently payable is
based on taxable profit for the period. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the Income Statement as it
excludes items of incoime or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit,
and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised to the

- extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which dediictible temporary differences can be
utilised. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered. Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the penod when the liability is
settled or the asset is realised.

Deferred tax is charged or credited in the Income Statement, except when it relates to ltems charged or credited
directly to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity.

Where there is no clear relationship between the pension expense recognised in the Income Statement and the tax
deductions received in the period on pension contributions paid, deferred tax movements during the period are first
allocated to items recognised in the Income Statement and then the remainder, if any, is allocated to 1tems in other
. comprehensive income. :

Assets held for sale
Assets are classified as held for sale if; their carrying amount will be recovered principally through sale, rather than
continuing use; they are available for immediate sale; and the sale is highly probable.

On initial classification as held for sale, assets are re-measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell.

No amortisation or depreciation is charged on assets classified as held for sale.

Retirement benefits

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fall due. For defined
benefit retirement schemes, the cost of providing benefits is determined using the projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuations being carried out at each balance sheet date. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised in full in

the period in which they occur. They are recognised outside the Income Statement and recorded in the Statement of
Comprehensive lncome Past service costs are recognised immediately.

The retirement benefit obllgatlon recognised in the Balance Sheet represents the present value of the defined beneﬁt
obligation as adjusted for unrecognised past service cost, and as reduced by the fair value of scheme assets.

Share-based payment transactions

The Company grants awards of shares to its employees under the Haynes Pubhshmg Group Long Term Incentive
Plan (LTIP). These awards vest after a period of three years dependent upon performance conditions being met.
Details of the grants are given in note 24. The fair value of the award is measured at grant date, using the Black-
Scholes model. The fair value of the award is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in
_ equity for the share settled award. The amount recognised as an expense is adjusted to exclude options that do not
vest as a result of performance conditions not being met.

Contmgent to the successful sale was-a proposed incentive arrangement for senior management in lieu of the Long
Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), where shares were awarded but will not vest in line with original expectations. The
announcement, therefore, triggered a modification to the existing LTIP as well as a charge for the new incentive
arrangement from this date, calculated as a cash-settled share-based payment to the date of a sale (3 April 2020).

. The fair value of the award is recognised as an employee expense with a corresponding increase in the liability on
the Group’s statement of financial position.
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31 Principal accounting policies (continued)

Dividends payable :
The liability for final dividends is recorded when the dividends are approved by the Parent Company’s shareholders
For 1nter1m dividends, the hablllty is recorded when the dividends are paid. :

Financial instruments .

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Parent Company becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial assets which include trade receivables and cash and
"cash equwalents are treated as loans and receivables and carried at amortised cost.

Trade and other receivables )
Trade receivables are recorded at original invoice amount less an allowance for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

A prov1snon for impairment of trade receivables is established when there is objective evidence that the Parent
Company will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms of the receivables. The amount
of the provision is recognised in the Balance Sheet and the cost of irrecoverable trade receivables is recognised in

. the Income Statement immediately.

Bank borrowings
Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts are initially recorded at fair value and carried at amortised cost.

Trade payables : : »
Trade payables are not interest bearing and are recognised and carried at the original invoice amount.

Crltlcal accounting estimates and judgements
The Group policies on critical accounting estimates and Judgements as detalled on page 24, are consistently applied
in the Parent Company’s financial statements. -

32 (Loss)/proﬁt of the parent company '

As permitted by Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, the income statement of the Parent Company is not
presented as part of these financial statements.

The loss dealt wnh in the Parent Company financial statements was £7.2 million (20|9 £0.9 million profit) Wthh
includes d1v1dends received from subsidiaries of £0.8 million (2019: £3.5 million).

Employees : Remuneration of Directors
2020 2019 ' 2020 2019
- £000 £000 - £000 £000
Aggregate remuneration: _ : ' ‘
~ Wages and salaries ’ ' - 1,655 1,632 o 1,016 1,102
Other social security costs : ‘ 191 : 210 oL D
Other pension costs . 115 - 46 91 - 112
’ 1,961 1,888 1,107 1,214
AQEr’age monthly Employee nufnbers 10 13 7 7

2 Directors are employed by a subsidiary company based in the Netherlands and another Director was employed by
a subsidiary company based in the United States of America. These Directors are remunerated by the respective
subsidiary companies only. On 3 April 2020, following the successful sale of the Group, 8 of the Directors resigned
their office of which 4 left employment of the Company with termination costs of £498,000. On the same date two

" new directors were appointed.

The details of the highest paid director is the same as disclosed in note 7 of these financial statements. -

Auditors’ remuneration
The fees payable by the Parent Company. to PrlcewaterhouseCoopers LLP for work performed in respect of the .

- audit of the Parent Company was £36,000 (2019: £50,000). Fees paid to PrlcewaterhouseCOOpers LLP by the Parent
Company for non-audit services was £13,000 (20I9 £12,000).
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Notes to the company financial statements (cont'inued)‘

33 Dividends

Dividends paid and proposed . 2020 2019
£000 . £000

- Amounts recognised as distributions to equity holders in the period:

Final dividend for the Year ended 31 May 2019 of 4.0p per share (2018: 4.0p per share) 605 ' 605
Interim dividend for the Period ended 3 April 2020 of £nil (2019: 3.5p per share) ~ - - 529
' 605 1,134

Proposed final dividend for the Penod ended 3 April 2020 of £nil
(2019: 4.0p per share)

As at 31 May 2019 the Company held 1,229,054 ordinary shares in treasury which represents 16.7% of the ordmary
share capital and 7.5% of the Company’s total share capital. The Parent Company is not able to vote on the treasury
shares and the treasury shares carry no right to receive any dividend or other distribution of assets other than in
relatlon to an issue of bonus shares.

- 605"

-

34 Intangible assets

. Accumulated . )
Cost B " £000 . Amortisation £000 - Net book value £000
At 1 June 2018 1,222 At 1 June 2018 (218) At 1 June 2018 1,004
Additions . ) 218 Charge for the year (268)
At 31 May 2019 . 1,440 At 31 May 2019 (486) At 31 May 2019 954
Additions 196 ‘Charge for the period (535)
At 3 April 2020 1,636 - -At3 April 2020 (1,021) At 3 April 2020 615

35 °  Property, plant and equipment

' .- Accumulated :
Cost : £000 Depreciation’ £000 Net book value £000
At 1 June 2018 75 At 1 June 2018 " (71) At 1 June2018 4
Additions - Charge for the year 2) -
Disposals - - Disposals - :
At 31 May 2019 .15 At 31 May 2019 - (73) At 31 May 2019 . 2
Additions _ 6 Charge for the period . )
Disposals s - Disposals - :
At 3 April 2020 ' 81 At 3 April 2020 (5) CAt3 April 2020 6

There were no assets financed through finance leases or hire purchase arrangements during the current period or prior
year. :

During the period ended 3 April 2020 the Group acquired the freehold land and buildings of the Old Creamery,
Sparkford for £300,000 and recognised £48,000 transaction costs, increasing the net book value of assets held for -
sale to £2,483,000. On 17 December 2019, the Group exchanged contracts on the whole Sparkford site, including
the Old Creamery for a sale price of £2,500,000. Completion is due to take place on or before 17 June 2021.

A

36 Investments in subsidiaries

_Parent company )
) ' 2020 2019
_ £000 - £000
Cost and carrying value 1 June . h 9,486 9,424
Additions- ’ ‘ : - 62
Reversal of LTIP investments in subsidiary undertakings . (95) . -
9,391 9,486

As at 3 April 2020, the subsidiary undertakings are listed on the following page. Unless stated otherwise the
registered office is shown on page 3 of these financial statements. All subsidiaries are wholly owned, within the
Group and all with period-ends of 31 May except where noted on the following page.

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701 - .
3 April 2020 ‘ : 53




Notes to the company financial statements (continued) ‘

36 Investments in subsidiaries (continued)
Company name ‘ : Country of incorporation,
‘ _ registration and operation
J.H. Haynes & Co. Ltd (Publisher and Printer) 2 ) United Kingdom
J.H. Haynes (Overseas) Ltd (Holding Company) (2 United Kingdom
" Haynes North America Inc. (Publisher) ) USA
859 Lawrence Drive, Newbury Park, CA 91320, USA o
Haynes Australia Pty Ltd - : Australia
Unit8, 17 Wzl[fox Street, Condell Park, NSW 2200, Australia -
HayriesPro Holding BV (Holding) S ) . The Netherlands
Flankement 6, 3831 SM, Leusden . : : _ .
HaynesPro BV (Data production, IT development and sales) ('l The Netherlands
Flankement 6, 3831 SM, Leusden . ) ‘
HaynesPro (UK) Ltd (Data Production) [1[2] : United Kingdom
HaynesPro Espana SL (Sales)(!} C . Spain
- 13, altillo 4a, E025006, Lleida
HaynesPro srl (Sales)!!] . Italy
Strada Palera 97, Moncalieri, Tormo 1-10024 :
HaynesPro Data srl (Data production and IT development) (1] . Romania
str. Ritoride Nr.5, Sector 5, cod postal 050204, Bucuresti .
HaynesPiro GmbH (Sales)(1 : Germany
Stammheimerstrafie 10, Kornwestheim, D-70806
OATS Ltd (Data production, IT development and sales) 2 United Kingdom
OATS (America) Ltd (Sales) (12 United Kingdom

OATS LLC (Sales) 1 USA
859 Lawrence Drive, Newbury Park, CA 91320, USA .

As at 3 April 2020, there were the following dormant subsidiary undertakings, all wholly owned within the Group:
Camway Autographics Ltd?®), Haynes Garages Ltd('!®) G.T. Foulis & Co. LtdP’], Oxford Iilustrated Préss Ltd®), Patrick
Stephens Ltd?®), E-Commerce Management.Ltd('1 ! HaynesPro Commerce (UK) Ltd!'16 and Teon Media Ltdl.

() Shares of those subsidiaries marked with an asterlsk are held by subsidiary undertakings. All other shares are held
by the Company. i

(2] Following the sale all entities within the Group are transitioning to a December year-end. The UK entities could .
not change from May 2019 directly to December 2020 due to UK law therefore these entities for this year only have

~ aperiod end of 9 April 2020 with numbers made up to 3 April 2020.

B The entities were dissolved in October 2020.

37 Trade and other receivables
Amounts falling due within one year: ' ) . 2020 2019 .
. ) £000 £000
Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings . A 02,694 4,997
Other debtors and prepayments . - - 8,822 39
‘ ' 11,516 5,036

The amount included as owed by subsidiary undertakings is a net figure made up from £5,057,000 (2019: £6,518,000)
owed and a provision of £2,363,000 (2019: £1,521,000). The provision relates to past deficit payments made by the
Company on behalf of a subsidiary which it does not expect to recover. .

f The increase in other debtors and prepayments relates to the sale Company sale of its shares held in Treasury. The
proceeds for which were recelved shortly after the year-end. ] . . .
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38 Trade and other payables

Amounts falling d)ue within one year: . _ 2020 2019
» : . £000 . £000 -

Trade payables | .. 414 132

Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings ’ - 271

Other taxes and social security costs . ’ ' - 12 16

Other creditors and accruals ) . 7,072 . 880

- 7,498 1,299

The increase in other creditors, accruals and deferred income relate to Contingent costs of the parent company
associated with the formal sale process as disclosed in the adjusting items, note 5, of these financial statements.
39 Financial risk management objectives and policies

Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provides details of the Group's fmancral risk management
objectives and policies.

These polrcres also apply to the Parent Company.

40 Retirement benefit obligation

The retirement benefit obligation recorded in the Balance Sheet represents the share of net liabilities relating to current
" or past employees of the Parent Company who are either active, deferred or retired members of the UK Scheme. Full
details of the UK Scheme are contained in note 23 of the consolidated financial statements. '

The net obligation as shown in the Balance Sheet is analysed as follews:

2019

2020
: £000 £000
Present value of defined benefit obligation (5,723) (5,994)
Fair value of scheme assets 3,148 3,305
- (2,575) (2,689)

The changes in the present value of the net defined obligation'are as follows:
r

Present value

of defined _ Fair value of
obligation  scheme assets
£000 £000
. Balance at 1 June 2018 (5,287) 3217
Current service cost (19) -
Past service cost ° (144) -
Net interest (expense)/income (150) 92
Employee contributions Q) 7
" Employer contributions. - 128
~ Actuarial loss (475) (51
Benefits paid 88 (88)
Balance at 31 May 2019 (5,994) 3,}05
Net interest (expense)/income (122) 68
Employer contributions - 113
Actuarial loss 266 211)
~ Benefits paid 127 127)
Balance at 3 April 2020 - (5,723) 3,148

On 30 November 2018, the schenie closed to future accrual and all active members’ transferred to a new Group

defined contrlbutron plan.
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.41 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Short-term

Property
plant and Employee temporary
equipment benefits differences " Total
‘ o £000 £000 £000 £000
Deferred tax (liabilities)/asset at 1 June 2018 " (156) 352 - 196
Transfer to Income Statement . - - 172 172
Transfer to equity T C L 105 - 105
Deferred tax (Iiabilities)/assgi at-31 May 2019 : (156) 457 172 473
Transfer to Income Statemen( ) . 156 - 1,032 1,188
Transfer to equity . - 32 - 32
Deferred tax asset at 3 April 2020 - 489 1,204 1,693
42 Share capital and reserves
2020 2019 2020 2019
No. . No. - £000 £000
- Allotted, called up and fully paid:
‘A’ Ordinary shares of 20p . ) ) 9,000,000 9,000,000 1,800 1,800
Ordinary shares of 20p h 7,351,540 7,351,540 1 470 1,470
. 16,351,540 16,351,540 3,270 3,270

~ The 31 March 1982 share price for capital gains tax purposes is £1.25 and after adjusting for the 1989 (1 for 1) and
1993 (1 for 2) capitalisation issue this becomes £0.42. On'the final day of trading the share price closed at £6.85 (31

May 2019:.£1.97), with a high of £7.00 (2019: £2.48) and a low of £1.97 (2019: £1 .56) for the financial period.

Both the ‘A’ ordinary shares and the ordinary shares carry equal voting rights of one vote per share where a matter
is decided other than on a show of hands. Both classes of share rank ‘pari passu’-(including any distribution by way

of dividend and on a return of capital), save that a transfer of *A’ ordinary shares will not be permitted by the
directors other than to a member of the holder’s immediate family or to family settlements. The holders of ‘A’

ordinary shares may convert such shares into ordinary shares at the rate of one ordinary share for each A ordinary

share, subject to the further provisions of the Articles of Association and the Compames Acts.

Retained earnings

The retained eamings reserve represents the cumulative net gams and losses recognised in the Consolidatéd Income
Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income, as well as an ad}ustment to-equity in respect

of the share performance plan.

"Treasury shares

. As at 3 April 2020, the Company had sold all its Treasury Shares as part of the sale of the Group At31 May 2019,

the Company held 1,229,054 ordinary shares in treasury which represented 16.7% (2018: 16.9%) of the ordinary
share capital and 7.5% of the Company’s total share capital. The Company was not-able to vote on the treasury
shares and the treasury shares carried no right to receive any dividend or other distribution of assets other than in

relation to an issue of bonus shares.

Haynes Group Limited
Company No. 00659701
- 3 April 2020

56



Notes to the company financial statements (continued)

43 Related party transactions .

(1) In the prior period £200 was paid to Haynes Developments Limited, of which JHC Haynes is a director, for rent
and service charges relating to Fulton Mews in London. No balance was outstanding at the previous year end.

' (2) Durmg the period, the Company engaged the services of. New Century Media Limited to undertake financial PR

_on behalf of the Company. Mr E Bell is a non-executive director of New Century Media Limited. During the period,
the Company paid £75,044 (2019: £78,584) to New Century Media Limited for financial PR services. As at 3 April
2020, the balance outstanding to New Century Media Limited was £9,010 (2019: £7,800). -

Y Contingencies

Details of the UK banking arrangements are contained in note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. The
perfonnance guarantees and indemnities have been entered into in the normal course of business and a llablllty would
only arise if one of the parties to the Group arrangement failed to fulfil its obligations.

In September 2015, the Parent Company increased its guarantee with the UK Pension Scheme to cover an amount
equal to the lowest non-negative amount which, when added to the assets of the Scheme, would result in the Scheme
being at least 110 percent funded on the date on which any liability under the guarantee arises, calculated on the basis
set’out in section 179 of the Pensions Act 2004, were a valuation to be conducted at that date.
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